Pre Solicitation Questions

1.  May bidders submit an executive summary for each volume outside of the page limitations for each volume?

Answer: Bidders should submit a proposal in accordance with Section L - Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Bidders.  Executive summary included in the proposal(s) will be part of the page count specified for each volume.  If proposal sections exceed the limitations set forth in the RFP, excess text will be removed from the back of the section and not evaluated.  The Government will not consider any information presented beyond the last whole word beyond the page limitation.

2.  RFP page 154 states, “Use 8 ½ by 11 inch paper printed on one side only with one inch margins on all sides and single spaced.”  In contrast, RFP page 158 states, “The supportive narrative shall not exceed fifteen (15) pages double-spaced for all references identified.”  Please clarify the spacing requirements for the technical section of volume II.

Answer: The RFP has been revised to reflect single-spaced for all references identified in Section L for the technical and management proposals. 
3.  L-1.c specifies a requirement that the proposal be on 8½ x 11” paper printed on one side with one-inch margins and single-spaced. Section L-3, Volume II Instructions, require text be double spaced, which contradicts the requirement in L-1.c. Please clarify if Volume II is to be single or double-spaced. If Volume II is to be double-spaced, we request an increase in the number of pages allowed for both the technical and management sections, as the given page limits are not sufficient to address all of the requirements.

Answer:  The page limitation for the technical and management proposals under Volume II has been revised to a maximum of up to 80 pages singled-spaced, as follows.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  

4. How will you level the playing field in evaluating technical proposals when some firms get 40 pages for CLINs and those who bid both have to spread their proposal over 40 pages.

Answer: The page limitation for the technical and management proposals under Volume II has been revised to a maximum of up to 80 pages singled-spaced, as follows.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  

5.  Will the Government consider allow page limits by CLINs and not on the contract in total.  Failure to make this change could result in a contractor bidding on only one CLIN to provide more detailed on their technical approach than a contractor bidding on all CLINs.

Answer: The page limitation for the technical and management proposals under Volume II has been revised to a maximum of up to 80 pages singled-spaced, as follows.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  
6.  Can we have equal number of pages for technical approach on each task.  (i.e. 20 pages for Task 1, if you are bidding only on task 1 or 40 pages if bidding on both tasks.)

Answer:  The page limitation for the technical and management proposals under Volume II has been revised to a maximum of up to 80 pages singled-spaced, as follows.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  
7.  As mentioned at the Industry day, the Technical section page limitations hinder Offerors that are proposing on both Tasks 1 and 2 by only allocating to them the same amount of pages that Offerors who are only proposing one Task are allocated. Additionally, NAVAIR indicated that there would be a compliance review of the proposals. In order to be equitable and to respond fully to Task 1, Task 2, and the compliance criteria as stated in the draft RFP, we request that NAVAIR allow the limit to apply to each Task response. Please comment.

Answer: The page limitation for the technical and management proposals under Volume II has been revised to a maximum of up to 80 pages singled-spaced, as follows.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  

8.  Do the page limit specifications apply for each task.  (i.e., if we only choose to bid Task I we are limited to 15 + 25, if we bid both we are allowed 15 + 25 for each Task 1 and Task 2).

Answer: The page limitation for the technical and management proposals under Volume II has been revised to a maximum of up to 80 pages singled-spaced, as follows.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  
9.  Proposal Line Spacing:  On page 154 (section c) the instructions state, “Use 8½ by 11 inch paper printed on only one side only with one inch margins on all sides and single spaced.”   This instruction conflicts with the statements on page 158 (section a, 3rd paragraph) and page 159 (section b, 1st paragraph) that state, “The supportive narrative shall not exceed twenty-five (25) double-spaced for all references identified.”  
Is the double-space requirement for the entire Technical and Management Sections or just for the “References Identified?”  If it is only for the “References Identified,” please clarify what this statement means.  We highly recommend based on the very restrictive page limitation that all references to “double-spacing” be eliminated and that the entire proposal be single-spaced as instructed on page 154.

Answer: The page limitation for the technical and management proposals under Volume II has been revised to a maximum of up to 80 pages singled-spaced, as follows.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.
10.  RFP page 159 states, “The Offeror shall provide a two page single-spaced Resume (format shown in Attachment (3)) for the work assignments, training, etc. that demonstrate the specific expertise and specialized qualifications for each person proposed as a Manager, as they relate to the SOW.” Are the resumes, prepared in accordance with Attachment 3, included in the 20-page limit for the management section of volume II?

Answer: Offer shall provide a two page single-space resume in Attachment (3) “Resume Format” which is excluded from the 20-page limit under the Management section of Volume II.  All attachments are part Volume I under Section J (List of Documents, Exhibits and Other Attachments).

11.  Are the resumes part of the 25-page count for the management section?

Answer: Offer shall provide a two page single-space resume in Attachment (3) “Resume Format” which is excluded from the 20-page limit under the Management section of Volume II.  All attachments are part Volume I under Section J (List of Documents, Exhibits and Other Attachments).

12.  RFP page 160 states, “The page limit for Small Business Subcontracting Strategy is 5 pages (not including graphs, charts, and or diagrams).”  Is this five-page limit in addition to or to be included in the 25 pages allotted for the management section of volume II?

Answer: Offer shall provide a two page single-space resume in Attachment (3) “Resume Format” which is excluded from the 20-page limit under the Management section of Volume II.  All attachments are part Volume I under Section J (List of Documents, Exhibits and Other Attachments).  Graphics, charts and diagrams included in the proposal(s) will be part of the page count specified for each volume.  If proposal sections exceed the limitations set forth in the RFP, excess text will be removed from the back of the section and not evaluated.

13.  The page limitation requirements for the technical approach are 15 pages and for management 25 pages.  Can the proposal exceed theses page limits as long as the total number does not exceed 40 pages?

Answer:  The page limitations for Task 1 and Task 2 under Volumes II have been revised.  The page limitation for Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems” is 20 single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the page limitation is 20 single-spaced.  The page limitation for the technical and management proposals are independent of each other.  Any pages exceeding the stated limitations for technical and management proposals will not be evaluated.  Volume II is to be single spaces.  Offerors must distinguish between proposed tasks and not exceed the page limits assigned to each tasks.

14.  Page Count Limitations – Management Plan/Approach:  On page 159 (section b, 1st paragraph) the instructions state that, “The supportive narrative [Management] shall not exceed twenty-five pages….”  On page 160 (section b (3), last paragraph), the instructions state, “The page limit for Small Business Subcontracting Strategy is 5 pages (not including graphs, charts, and or diagrams).”

The page count limitations based on the proposal instruction for the Management Plan/Approach are very confusing and need clarification.  See the following questions:

Are the 5 pages allocated to the Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Subcontracting Strategy [part 3 of the Management Section] part of the 25-page limit for the Management Section or in addition to the 25-page limit? 


Answer: The page limitation for the technical and management proposals under Volume II has been revised to a maximum of up to 80 pages singled-spaced, as follows.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the technical proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  The Small Business Subcontracting Plan and Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy will be counted toward the page limitation for the management section.
15.  The instructions on page 159 and 160 (Section (3)) require three SB-SDB responses from the bidder: (a) A Small Business Subcontracting Plan; (b) Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy; and (c) Bidders Past Experience in Meeting Proposed Small Business and SDB Subcontracting Goals.  Do all of these sections come under the Management Section 25 page limit, the 5-page limit, or other page limits?
Answer:  Yes, all the sections should be part of the Management proposal and will be counted toward the Management section page limitation.  
16.  Page Count Limitations – Past Performance:  The instructions for page count for the Past Performance Section on page 156 states, “Questionnaires” rather than giving a number.  

The instructions for the Past Performance Section on page 160 require four Past Performance subsections to include: (a) List of References; (b) Past Performance Questionnaires; (c) Explanation of the Role of Subcontractors in Successes and Failures in Past Performance; and (d) Certification by Bidder that Performance Information is Complete and Accurate.  

The page count limitation for the Past Performance is confusing and needs clarification.  Of the above four requested subsections, only the “Explanation of the Role of Subcontractors in Past Performance” has a page limit restriction (Reference: page 160, section c, paragraph (3), “The supporting material shall not exceed two (2) pages.”).  Are we correct to assume that none of the other requested Past Performance Subsections have any page limitations?
Answer: Under Volume II Past Performance, offerors should submit Attachment (5) “Past Performance Matrix” and Attachment (6) “Past Performance Questionnaire.  The Past Performance Matrix should contain a list of the offerors references.  Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror.  One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.  Any references submitted in excess will not be evaluated.  The original Past Performance Matrix must be submitted with the Past Performance proposal.  
The Past Performance Questionnaire, Attachment 6, is to be submitted to each of the references listed on the Past Performance Matrix.  Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror.  One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.  Under Attachment (6) “Past Performance Questionnaire”, the offeror should submit the original Past Performance Questionnaire with the proposal in Volume II.  The offerors should have their references submit a completed copy of the Past Performance Questionnaire via facsimile directly to Krista Hayden by proposal due date.  

In addition to the Past Performance Matrix and Past Performance Questionnaire, offerors may submit a two-page narrative.  Offeror should not discuss relevant experience in this narrative.  Offerors should explain, if any, the role that subcontractors played in contributing toward their successes and/or failures in regards to past performance.  The supportive narrative shall not exceed two pages in its entirety.

17.  Section L-3b(1) indicates a requirement for a 2-page resume for each person proposed as a Manager. We assume these resumes are excluded from the 25-page limit on the Management section. Please confirm this assumption.

Answer:  The page limitation for the Management Section under Volumes II has been revised.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Under Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO” the management proposal shall not exceed 20 pages single-spaced.  Offer shall provide a two page single-space resume in Attachment (3) “Resume Format” which is excluded from the page limit under the Management section of Volume II.

18.  Are graphics included in the page count?

Answer: Graphics included in the proposal(s) will be part of the page count specified for each volume.  If proposal sections exceed the limitations set forth in the RFP, excess text will be removed from the back of the section and not evaluated.

19.  L-1.c specifies a requirement for 10-point Times New Roman font. May other fonts/sizes be used for charts and graphs?

Answer: Offerors must use 10-point Times New Roman font with normal (uncondensed) spacing for each proposal.

20.  Proposal Font Size:  On page 154 (section c) the instructions state, “Use 10 point Times New Roman font with normal (uncondensed) spacing.”

The 10 Pont Times Roman Font is fine for proposal text, but it can be very cumbersome (too large) to use in proposal graphics.  We assume that this 10-point font limitation applies only to the narrative proposal text and not proposal graphical material.  Is this correct?  If not, we recommend that to allow bidders to properly present graphical illustrations that this instruction be modified to include the statement; “Fonts as small as 8 points may be used in charts, diagrams, tables, and other graphical presentations.”


Answer: Offerors must use 10-point Times New Roman font with normal (uncondensed) spacing for each proposal.

21.  RFP page 4 section A-1 clause 1.  Please provide detail on the 48-hour notice of Intent Survey, which is not included in the Draft RFP Section J as indicated.

Answer: Prior to soliciting task order proposals, the Statement of Work (SOW) will be sent to all awardees (electronically/faxed) with a request to respond within 48 hours of their intent to submit or not submit a proposal.  Offerors intending to submit a proposal should submit a brief response with technical capabilities and an estimated price.  Responses will be sent to the Procuring Contracting Officer (PCO).  The PCO in conjunction with the OIG DoD will determine reasonable assurance of each submitted response.  If there is reasonable assurance that two (2) or more HUBZone, 8(a) or SDVOSB concerns will submit a proposal, then the work will be reserved for Lot I (HUBZone, 8(a), SDVOSB companies).  If it appears that only one or no HUBZone, 8(a) or SDVOSB companies will propose, then the PCO will see if reasonable assurance exists for two (2) or more Small Businesses.  If there is reasonable assurance that two (2) or more Small Businesses intend to propose, the work will be reserved for Lot II (Small Businesses).  If it appears that only one or no small businesses will proposed, then the RFP will be opened to awardees in Lot III (Unrestricted).  The Government may unilaterally compete a specific task order requirement among contractors within a specified Lot without utilizing the cascading provision of the contract if the OIG DoD, the NAVAIR Small Business Office and the PCO agree, after a detailed review of the specific task order requirement, that the specific task order requirement should be competed solely among the contractors of a given Lot.  Under Section J, we have added Attachment (11) “48 Hour Notice of Intent Survey.” 

22.  In general, how many days will be provided to prime contractors to respond to/propose upon task orders?

Answer:  Prior to soliciting task order proposals, the Statement of Work (SOW) will be sent to all awardees (electronically/faxed) with a request to respond within 48 hour of their intent to submit or not submit a proposal.  Offerors intending to submit a proposal should submit a brief response with technical capabilities and an estimated price.  Responses will be sent to the Procuring Contracting Officer (PCO).  The PCO in conjunction with the OIG DoD will determine reasonable assurance of each submitted response.  The final proposal submission timeframe will vary per task order.

23.  What is the planned form and content of the “48-hour” intent to respond to delivery order letter?  Will OIG DoD provide a prototype to facilitate quick, uniform and streamlined responses?

Answer:  Prior to soliciting task order proposals, the Statement of Work (SOW) will be sent to all awardees (electronically/faxed) with a request to respond within 48 hours of their intent to submit or not submit a proposal.  Offerors intending to submit a proposal should submit a brief response with technical capabilities and an estimated price.  Responses will be sent to the Procuring Contracting Officer (PCO).  The PCO in conjunction with the OIG DoD will determine reasonable assurance of each submitted response.  Under Section J, we have added Attachment (11).

24.  Regarding reserve system - how will notification of intent to reserve an opportunity for Lots I and/or Lot II?  Is the 48-hour intent to bid part of the overall 7 days to respond?

Answer:  Prior to soliciting task order proposals, the Statement of Work (SOW) will be sent to all awardees (electronically/faxed) with a request to respond within 48 hours of their intent to submit or not submit a proposal.  Offerors intending to submit a proposal should submit a brief response with technical capabilities and an estimated price.  Responses will be sent to the Procuring Contracting Officer (PCO).  If the Contracting Officer receives reasonable assurance that two (2) or more HUBZone and/or 8(a) companies will submit a proposal, then the work will be reserved for Lot I -  HUBZone/8(a) companies and the RFP will not be opened to awardees in Lot II or Lot III.  If it appears that only one HUBZone or 8(a) company will propose, then the RFP will be open to those awardees in Lot II – Small Business. If it appears that only one or no Small businesses will propose, then the RFP will be open to those awardees in Lot III.  The Government may unilaterally compete a specific task order requirement among contractors within a specified Lot without utilizing the cascading provision of the contract if the OIG DoD, the NAVAIR Small Business Office and the PCO agree, after a detailed review of the specific task order requirement, that the specific task order requirement should be competed solely among the contractors of a given Lot.  The 48-hour intent to bid is not part the overall 7 days to respond.

25.  NAVAIR has indicated that the task orders will be issued over time, which does not enable the bidders to respond to only those tasks most appropriate for them. Would the IG DoD consider posting anticipated tasks?

Answer: Prior to soliciting task order proposals, the Statement of Work (SOW) will be sent to all awardees (electronically/faxed) with a request to respond within 48 hours of there intent to submit or not submit a proposal.  Offerors intending to submit a proposal should submit a brief response with technical capabilities and an estimated price.  Responses will be sent to the Procuring Contracting Officer (PCO).  The PCO in conjunction with the OIG DoD will determine reasonable assurance of each submitted response.

26.  RFP page 160 states, “The completed Past Performance Questionnaires must be submitted with the Proposal in Volume II.”  In contrast, RFP Attachment 6 states, “Submit Past Performance Cover Sheet and Questionnaire by Proposal Due Date To: Krista Hayden by Facsimile…”  Does the government want the past performance questionnaires returned to bidders to be submitted in the proposal or returned directly to the contracting officer from the bidders’ references?

Answer:  Offerors references should submit the original Past Performance Questionnaire with the proposal in Volume II.  A list of the offerors references should be submitted with the original Past Performance Matrix.  The offerors should have their references submit a completed copy of the Past Performance Questionnaire via facsimile directly to Krista Hayden by proposal due date.

27.  In instances where a firm served as a subcontractor and would like to use this work as an example of past performance and submit a questionnaire for evaluation, should the questionnaire be sent to the prime contractor, to the government, or both, given that the government may not have interacted directly with the specific subcontractor?

Answer: Offerors references should submit the original Past Performance Questionnaire with the proposal in Volume II.  A list of the offerors references should be submitted with the original Past Performance Matrix.  The offerors should have their references submit a completed copy of the Past Performance Questionnaire via facsimile directly to Krista Hayden by proposal due date.
28.  Can the proposed prime contractor submit more than three past performance references?

Answer.  Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror.  One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.  Any references submitted in excess will not be evaluated.

29.  Can the proposed prime [or] subcontractor submit more than one past performance reference?

Answer: Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror.  One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.  Any references submitted in excess will not be evaluated.

30.  Confirm that the past performance questionnaires that are sent to the referenced parties are to be forwarded directly by that party to NAVAIR and that it is not expected for the proposed prime contractor to include such completed questionnaires in Volume 2.  Clearly define "completed past performance questionnaire" as noted in the final RFP as currently described on page 160 of the RFP.77.  

Answer: Offerors references should submit the original Past Performance Matrix with the proposal in Volume II.  The offeror should submit a copy of the Past Performance Questionnaire via facsimile to Krista Hayden by proposal due date.  The Past Performance Questionnaire, Attachment 6, is to be submitted to each of the references listed on the Past Performance Matrix.  Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror.  One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.  Any references submitted in excess will not be evaluated.
31.  Section L-3c(1): In the Past Performance Matrix, may the offeror provide information on more projects than the ones for which a Past Performance Questionnaire is submitted to the reference for completion?

Answer: Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror.  One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.  Any references submitted in excess will not be evaluated. 

32.  Section L-3.c(2): Are completed Past Performance Questionnaires to be sent by the references directly to the government or returned to the offeror and submitted in the proposal?

Answer: Answer: Offerors references should submit the original Past Performance Matrix with the proposal in Volume II.  The offeror should submit a copy of the Past Performance Questionnaire via facsimile to Krista Hayden by proposal due date.  The Past Performance Questionnaire, Attachment 6, is to be submitted to each of the references listed on the Past Performance Matrix.  Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror.  One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.  Any references submitted in excess will not be evaluated.
33.  Section L-3.c(3) requires a 2-page supporting narrative regarding contributions of subcontractors.  Can this narrative section be used to describe offeror and subcontractor relevant experience and past performance beyond the information provided in the Past Performance Matrix?

Answer:  Offeror should not discuss relevant experience in this narrative.  Offerors should explain, if any, the role that subcontractors played in contributing toward their successes and/or failures in regards to past performance.  The supportive narrative shall not exceed two pages in its entirety.

34.  The instructions state that a copy of the evaluation reference questionnaires however, pages state that the evaluation reference questionnaire should be faxed or e-mailed to Krista Hayden.  Please clarify.

Answer:  Offerors references should submit the original Past Performance Questionnaire with the proposal in Volume II.  A list of the offerors references should be submitted with the original Past Performance Matrix.  The offerors should have their references submit a completed copy of the Past Performance Questionnaire via facsimile directly to Krista Hayden by proposal due date.

35.  Section L-3.c(5) states “In addition to the requirement above, the offeror shall provide the government with a complete list of PCOs/ACOs/CORs solicited.” Please clarify what information you are requesting.

Answer: Offeror shall identify and describe past performance in fulfilling Government and commercial contracts/major subcontracts.  For each contract listed in Past Performance Matrix, the offer shall provide a complete listing of Procuring Contracting Officers (PCO), Administrative Contracting Officers (ACO) and Contracting Officer’s Representative (COR) for past performance of Government contracts/major subcontracts. 

36.  Please explain what the 2 page narrative for the past performance section should include

Answer: Explain, if any, the role that subcontractors have played in contributing toward your successes and/or failures in regards to past performance.  You must either provide the above information or affirmatively state that no past performance history exists.
37.  RFP page 163.  May vendors submit multiple Table B-1(1)(a) based on regional labor rates and labor category differences?

Answer: As indicated in Section L – “Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Bidders” the price/cost proposal must contain specific rates provided in the format of Table B-1(a) based for all three (3) years.  Offerors must submit a Table B-1(a) based on CONUS and OCONUS labor rates and labor category differences.  The proposed rates shall clearly demonstrate the individual costs.  The Hazardous sites have been deleted at the contract level.  If applicable, rates for Hazardous site will be negotiated at the task order level. 

38.  Section L-4, Volume III instructions, requests fully burdened hourly rates for Time & Materials task orders for CONUS Government Sites, OCONUS Government Sites, and Hazardous Government Sites. Does this mean that none of the work will be done at contractor sites? Also, please define what locations might be designated as “Hazardous” sites.

39.  It is our understanding that the rates proposed for the MAC effort are to be a not-to-exceed ceiling, but that those rates may be discounted at the task order level, please confirm.

Answer:  The price/cost proposal must contain specific rates for all three (3) years for the Offeror and subcontractors.  Offerors are not allowed to exceed proposed rates but may discount proposed rates at the task order level.

Answer:  The Hazardous sites have been deleted at the contract level.  If applicable, rates for Hazardous sites will be negotiated at the task order level. 

40.  Please define Hazardous sites for the purpose pricing.

Answer:  The Hazardous sites have been deleted at the contract level.  If applicable, rates for Hazardous sites will be negotiated at the task order level. 

41.  RFP pg. 165, second paragraph.  Does the reference to Table I herein mean Table B-1(1)(a) on pg.164?

Answer: Yes.

42.  On page 165, the RFP speaks to a “Table I”.  I am not sure which table in the RFP this refers to -- either Table B-1(1)(a) or Attachment I.  Please clarify.

Answer: Table I refers to Table B-1(1)(a).

43.  RFP pages 4 through 5 section A-1 and RFP page 69 section H-5 second paragraph.  Will the reservation of contracts constitute "set-asides?"  If so, how much is the set-aside for each socioeconomic indicator (HUBZone, 8(a), SDB)?

Answer: This is not a set-aside procurement, which requires the prime to perform at least 51% of the work under a task order.  The contract will be issued on an unrestricted, full and open competition basis, with provisions to award to HUBZone, 8(a), SDVOSB and Small Business concerns under a reserved lot system. Although the use of reserve lot systems do not require the prime to perform at least 51% of the work under a task order, for Lots I and II only prime contractors shall be required to perform at least 25% to 40 % of the proposed effort specified in each task order.  The percentage of work performed by the prime contractor in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions for Lots I and II.
44.  Under the reserve system for Lots I & II, are the HUBZone, 8(a) and small business firms required to perform 50% of the work?

Answer: This is not a set-aside procurement, which requires the prime to perform at least 51% of the work under a task order.  The contract will be issued on an unrestricted, full and open competition basis, with provisions to award to HUBZone, 8(a), SDVOSB, and Small Business concerns under a reserved lot system. Although the use of reserve lot systems do not require the prime to perform at least 51% of the work under a task order, for Lots I and II only, prime contractors shall be required to perform at least 25% to 40 % of the proposed effort specified in each task order.  The percentage of work performed by the prime contractor in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions for Lots I and II. 
45.  What incentive exists for a large business to waste its B&P resources on preparing three bids (for Lots I, II & III), when they can get enough work just from Lots I & III?

Answer:  The Government will not comment on individual business strategies that may be used to bid on this contract.  The Government anticipates that sufficient opportunities will exist for Lot II.  Offerors are allowed to submit one proposal for multiple lots.  However, offeror should be sure to indicate which lot or lots they are proposing.
46.  What incentive exists for DOD to allow work to flow to a small business firm (Lot II), when virtually no need exists for work to flow to Lot II?

Answer:  Based on the Government’s market research there should be sufficient opportunities for Lot II.  The incentives for DoD to allow work to flow to Lot II include maximizing competition and use of the small business resources.
47.  RFP page 73 (Section H-13 (a)):  The RFP states the prime contractor shall be able to perform at a minimum in a sub-set of technical areas without assistance of subcontractors.  What is the definition of "minimum" and "sub-set".  Additionally, how does the "minimum in a subset of technical area" align with the requirements that a prime contractor classified as an 8a or small business to perform more than 50% of the work?  

Answer:  Minimum and “sub-set” implies small tasks assigned within a larger task.  This is not a set-aside procurement, which requires the prime to perform at least 51% of the work under a task order.  The contract will be issued on an unrestricted, full and open competition basis, with provisions to award to HUBZone, 8(a), Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business, and Small Business concerns under a reserved lot system.  Although the use of reserve lot systems do not require the prime to perform at least 51% of the work under a task order, for Lots I and II only, prime contractors shall be required to perform at least 25% to 40 % of the proposed effort specified in each task order.  The percentage of work performed by the prime contractor in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions for Lots I and II.
48.  Will the final RFP dictate standard labor categories and definitions that they intend for the contractor to use to submit rate information.  Or will the final RFP include a sample of hours they intend the contractor to provide rates for?  

Answer:  The final RFP will not dictate standard labor categories and definition.  As a performance based procurement, the contractor shall propose the labor categories and labor category rates necessary to meet the requirements.  The final RFP will not include a sample of hours for proposed rates.

49.  Reference to the Tables in Section B -- are these tables to be used only for task orders.  Please clarify.

Answer:  The Tables in Section B shall reflect one fully burdened rate for each proposed labor category.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices.
50.  Attachment 1 – Fully Burdened Hourly Rate Table, Do Subcontractors need to complete Attachment 1?

Answer: Subcontractors are required to complete Attachment (1) “Fully Burdened Hourly Rate Table”.  The data should be submitted directly to the Government in support of the prime offeror’s price proposal.  Prime contractors are to submit the subcontractor’s information with the prime’s proposal.  Separate and or sealed envelopes are acceptable.  Non-receipt of subcontractor’s information may render an offeror unacceptable and the offeror may be ineligible for award without discussions.
51.  Will NAVAIR be open to a composite rate for similar labor categories proposed by the Small Business & Large Business.  However, this rate may exceed the Small Business government approved rate?

Answer: Offerors must propose a composite rate for any labor categories for which more than one company’s personnel are proposed.  The composite rate information must consist of specific rates provided in the format of Attachment (1) “Fully Burdened Fixed Hourly Rate.”  The proposed rates shall clearly demonstrate the individual cost elements.  
52.  Section A-1 lays out the procedures for allowing awardees under the three Lots to bid on task orders. If a task is sent to the Lot 1 (8(a) & HUBZone) firms and more than one expresses interest, thereby reserving that task for Lot 1 firms, is the Lot 1 prime that is awarded the task required to perform at least 51% of the work on that task? In the same vein, if a task is reserved for Lot 2 firms, is the Lot 2 prime required to perform at least 51% of the work on that task? Will any tasks, especially the large ones, be open to contractors in all Lots? We request you reconsider this “reserve” system of awarding tasks.

Answer:  This is not a set-aside procurement, which requires the prime to perform at least 51% of the work under a task order.  The contract will be issued on an unrestricted, full and open competition basis, with provisions to award to HUBZone, 8(a), SDVOSB and Small Business concerns under a reserved lot system. Although the use of reserve lot systems do not require the prime to perform at least 51% of the work under a task order, for Lots I and II only, prime contractors shall be required to perform at least 25% to 40 % of the proposed effort specified in each task order.  The percentage of work performed by the prime contractor in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions for Lots I and II.
53.  How will the SBA 51% work requirement for prime contractors be measured?  Will it be applied at the individual task order level or at the prime contractor's contract value?

Answer:  Refer to the response for number 52.
54.  RFP page 79.  Will all task orders under $100,000 be reserved for small businesses, per FAR 19.502-2?

Answer: FAR 19.502-2 is for “Total Small Business Set-Asides”, this is not a set-aside procurement.  The solicitation will be issued on an unrestricted, full and open competition basis, with provisions to award to HUBZone, SDVOSB,  8(a) and Small Business concerns under a reserved system.  To the maximum extent practicable all awardees shall be provided a fair opportunity to be considered.

55.  RFP page 67 H-3.  Footnote.  "Percentage shall be based upon total contract value."  Does this mean that the governments 23% goal of total dollars will be prorated across prime contractors that are not small 8a or HUBZone?  What is meant by total contract value?  How will goals be adjusted as/if other contractors are admitted?

Answer:  The SB subcontracting goal of 23% is the 23% of the total proposed contract level of effort reserved for Small Businesses (at the task order level).  Of this 23% SB subcontracting goal, 5% of the effort is for Small Disadvantaged Businesses; 5% of the effort is for Small Woman-Owned Businesses; 2% of the effort is for HUBZone Businesses; and 3% of the effort is for Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Small Businesses.
56.  Explain that Small Businesses need to submit a SB Plan?

Answer:  Small Businesses are not required to submit a Small Business plan.  However, for this procurement small businesses shall comply with Section L-3(b)(3). In accordance with L-3(b)(3) small businesses are required to provide a description of SDB subcontract strategy efforts with their initial proposal in detail to the extent, complexity and variety of work that small businesses and SDBs are to perform under this proposed contract.  

57.  Please clarify the difference between small business subcontracting plan & small business subcontracting strategy & what should be included in each.

Answer:  Small Business Subcontracting Plan must be submitted by large businesses only and conform to the requirements of FAR part 19.7.  Small businesses are required to submit a description of Small Disadvantage Business subcontracting strategy.  For this procurement small businesses shall comply with Section L-3(b)(3).  In accordance with L-3(b)(3) small businesses are required to provide a  description of SDB subcontract efforts with their initial proposal in detail to the extent, complexity and variety of work that small businesses and SDBs are to perform under this proposed contract.  
58.  You mentioned that small business primes would have to include a small business subcontracting Plan.  What would be included?

Answer:  Small Business Subcontracting Plan must be submitted by large businesses only and conform to the requirements of FAR part 19.7.  Small businesses are required to submit a description of Small Disadvantage Business subcontracting strategy.  For this procurement small businesses shall comply with Section L-3(b)(3).  In accordance with L-3(b)(3) small businesses are required to provide a description of SDB subcontract efforts with their initial proposal in detail to the extent, complexity and variety of work that small businesses and SDBs are to perform under this proposed contract.  
59.  Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) Subcontracting Strategy:  The instructions state that the Small Business Subcontracting Plan should be written in accordance with FAR 19.702(b)(1), which requires offerors to report dollars in accordance with our Subcontracting Plan.  

May we provide an estimate percentage of small business participation for the proposal submission, and upon award, our firm will price to the individual task orders?

Answer:  Small Business Subcontracting Plan must be submitted by large businesses only and conform to the requirements of FAR part 19.7.
60.  Has the mandatory subcontracting percentage for Lot III firms been defined?  The draft RFQ indicates a minimum of 23% government-wide goal.  Is that the OIG DoD goal, as well?

Answer: The government-wide minimum SB Subcontracting goal is 23% of the proposed total contract value of a task order, which is the same for this procurement.  

61.  The draft RFP (page 52 of 182) has 23% as minimum government-wide goal of total estimated level of effort.  Would the OIG DoD strengthen this goal by making dollar value of the delivery order the base upon which the percentage is applied rather than hours?  

Answer: The government-wide minimum SB Subcontracting goal is 23% of the proposed total contract value of a task order, which is the same for this procurement.  

62.  Is 23% of the work going to small businesses?

Answer:  The SB subcontracting goal of 23% is the 23% of the total proposed contract level of effort reserved for Small Businesses (at the task order level).  Of this 23% SB subcontracting goal, 5% of the effort is for Small Disadvantaged Businesses; 5% of the effort is for Small Woman-Owned Businesses; 2% of the effort is for HUBZone Businesses; and 3% of the effort is for Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Small Businesses.
63.  RFP page 68 H-5a.  "The contractor agrees to accept and perform orders issued by the Contracting Officer within the scope of this agreement."  We suggest that contractors be permitted to refuse task orders, because of potential organizational conflicts of interest.

Answer:  The Government should be notified of any potential conflict of interest prior to performing task orders.  In accordance with Section H clause 5252.209-9510 “Organizational Conflicts of Interest” paragraph (g), contractors are required to disclose potential conflicts of interest.  The contractor recognizes that during the term of this contract, conditions may change which may give rise to the appearance of a new conflict of interest.  In such an event, the contractor shall disclose to the Government information concerning the new conflict of interest.  Task orders will not be issued to contractors until potential conflicts have been identified and resolved.

64.  RFP page 74 through 77 clause 5252.209-9510 Organizational Conflicts of Interest [X] Item (5) (FAR 9.505-4(b)) and [X] Item (7).  This clause infers that those contractors performing IT assessments (and audit assessments) would be precluded from performing audits if IT assessments (and audit assessments) that meet the definition of advisory and assistance services.  Is it the DoD OIG’s intent to restrict such work from the contractors.  Please clarify.

Answer: No, clause 5252.209-9510 “Organizational Conflict of Interest” refers to the use of advisory and assistance services from non-governmental sources as a consultant not employed as a contractor.  The OCI clause is designed to prevent contractors from using their position as consultants to gain unfair advantages in acquisitions.  Under SOW paragraph 2.6 “Independence/Quality Control Assurance) states that contractor shall represent their independence as defined in Government Audit Standards 3.03 and 3.04.  
65.  RFP page 68 H-5b.  "The Procuring Contracting Officer will review the PID package and determine in which Lot the work should be placed."  This conflicts slightly with the procedure outlined on page 4, A-1 section 1, and on page 69.  Please clarify.

Answer: See revised H-5 “Task Order Procedures Under Multiple Award Contract For the IG DoD Financial Statements”.    

66.  RFP page 69 (c) This section suggests that all task orders will be fully competed in the appropriate lot. However, the first paragraph on page 69 states "task orders will be issued on either a competitive or non-competitive basis."  Please clarify further the process for assigning task orders.

Answer: The Government anticipates there will be exceptions to FASA and instances in which the notice of intent will not apply.  In those instances, the PCO reserves the right to determine in which Lot the work should be placed.  The Federal Acquisition Streamline Act of 1994 requires all multiple award contractors must be provided a fair opportunity to be considered “for each task or delivery order” over $2,500 issued unless one of four statutory exemptions applies. 
67.  RFP page 71 “H-8 Rolling Admission”. The last sentence reads, "Since long-term business partnering is encouraged, current IDIQ holders will not be eligible to compete for these contracts."  Does this apply only to the prime contractor on a team?  May subcontractor or teaming partners join new teams through this process?  May prime contractors add themselves as subcontractors to new teams?

Answer: Current prime ID/IQ holders will not be eligible to compete.  However, subcontractors may decide to propose as first time prime contractors or propose on teams with other first time prime contractors.  Prime contractors could potentially add themselves as subcontractors to new teams with first time prime contractors.

68.  RFP page 72 H-11.  It is widely viewed that the effort required under the MAC will require a significant number of professional IT and financial auditors for the DoD OIG as well as the contractors who will be performing the work.  To maximize the work capacity of these professionals most organizations require/allow a certain level of overtime to be incurred.  The restrictions noted in H-11 are not cost-effective for the contractors or the government.  Further, will the government permit access to high-speed dial up lines during business hours so that the contractor personnel can access research databases or Government furnished information that is required to be obtained in the completion of proposed task orders?  If not, then H-11 further restricts and prevents the professional from being effective for the tasks required.  The professional would be required to be located at a non-government office (i.e. home, corporate office, hotel) to access networks and eMail.

Answer:  The contractor shall provide the required services and staffing coverage during normal working hours.  During normal working hours, DoD personnel will be reasonably available for meetings, providing assistances in locating documents and providing requested data.

69.  RFP page 73.  H-14.  This clause suggests advance approval of all travel required.  Please reconsider.  As you have noted at page 69, (c) Task Order Request for Proposal, “The task order package for competition should be placed out for proposal for not less than 7 calendar days.  However, there may be instances (i.e., urgent requirements) when less time may be allowed."  In such urgent requirements, administrative burden of advance approval of travel arrangements could be great.

Answer: Clause H-14 has been moved to 5252.232-9509 “Reimbursement of Travel, Per Diem, and Special Material Cost”.  The clause will remain as written.

70.  RFP page 94-96.  5252.245-9520 Associate Contractor Clause.  Is this clause included in error?  If not, please clarify potential incompatibility between program contractors and weapons systems associate contractors.  Does this refer to software standards?

Answer: The Associate Contractor Clause 5252.245-9520 will be deleted from the RFP.

71.  Where you have a FAR clause and a FAR clause with an Alternative, will you specify which one will apply at the Task Order level (e.g., RFP page 97, Clauses 52.219-9 and 52.219-9 Alt II, which are mutually exclusive)?

Answer: The task orders will clearly identify which FAR clause is applicable.

72.  RFP page 98.  52.228-13. Why is this included? Is the DoD OIG contemplating any construction on this contract?

Answer: FAR clause 52.228-13 “Alternative Payment Protections” has been deleted from the RFP.

73.  RFP page 104.  52.244-2. As bidders must identify subcontractors up front may we assume acceptance of our proposal constitutes evaluation of subcontractors per section (k) of this clause.  If so, we suggest that the government consider removing this clause so that the contractor does not need to obtain approval of subcontractors on every task order, since approval will be granted under the MAC submission and acceptance.

Answer: The Subcontract clause 52.244-2 will be deleted from the RFP.

74.  RFP page 146.  52.252-2. Are all clauses to be incorporated by reference set forth in the solicitation?  Do you plan to add any more clauses?

Answer: All clauses to be incorporated by reference are set forth in this solicitation.

75.  Reference RFP page 155 under Section L-1(g); page 161-166 L-4; page 167 and 52.215-20. FAR 52.215-20 allows the CO to grant an exception to the requirement for cost or pricing data where certain conditions exist.  For example, an exception may be granted if a contractor proposes to supply commercial items, and can demonstrate that the item is included on an active Federal Supply Schedule, and that the GSA did not require cost or pricing data before listing that item on the schedule.  How may contractors make a written request for such an exception (as the contract is to be awarded without discussion), and how long does the government anticipate its response would take?  How does a contractor exercise exceptions under FAR 52.215-20 from cost/pricing data in a manner that affords the contractor the opportunity to subsequently submit cost/pricing data if the exception is not granted?

Answer:  The Government is uncertain as to how many contractors make or will make a written request for such an exception nor how long it would take to respond to such a request.  In accordance with FAR 52.215-20, when cost and pricing data is requested, in lieu of submitting cost or pricing data, offerors may submit a written request for exception by submitting the information described in the subparagraphs of the FAR clause.  

76.  Please reference RFP page 157 L-1(q).  The statement "Note that the rate may be from the prime or any other team member," and the requirement to propose the highest direct cost labor category within the team proposed appear inconsistent with the statement on p. 161, L-4(a)  "Composite rates are required for any labor categories for which more than one company's personnel are proposed."  Also, both conflict with the format of attachment (1), which shows multiple individual employees by labor category.  Please explain.

Answer:  Section L-1 “Proposal Instructions” paragraph (q), L-4 (a) and Attachment (1) “Fully Burdened Fixed Labor Rate Table” should contain the same information.  Under Section L-1, (q) has been revised to state the following: “Offerors are instructed not to insert a proposed amount in any CLINs specified in Section B.  Further, offerors are instructed not to insert a maximum contract value.   The Government will insert required Section B information.”.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices.  For L-4(a), the rate information should support the prime offeror’s price proposal.  Prime contractors are to submit the subcontractor’s information with the prime’s proposal.  Separate and or sealed envelopes  submitted by the prime on behalf of the subcontractor are acceptable.  Under Attachment (1), offerors are to submit a fully burdened fixed labor rate for all proposed rates (prime and subcontractors) that shows individual cost elements.

77.  How will contractors bid on Time & Materials work?

Answer:  In accordance with Section L-4 contractors will provide Fully Burdened Rates that will represent the ceiling rates for the proposed labor category.  In addition, as requested in L-4, contractors must submit the cost elements for which the fully burdened rates were derived.  Contractors will bid on Time & Materials task orders by utilizing their not to exceed rates submitted at contract award.

78.  RFP page 158-159 L-3.  Last paragraph (top of p. 159).  Please define "major subcontractor."

Answer:  The word “major” will be deleted from the solicitation.  
79.  Please provide the Government’s definition of a “major” subcontractor.

Answer: Refer to response on question #78.

80.  Please define "major" subcontractor.

Answer: Refer to response on question # 78.

81.  RFP page 161 L-4, and generally.  Is no further support required for the contractor's entry for the FFP items in section B?  Given that this is a multi-award IDIQ contract, how can the government evaluate any item pricing in section B meaningfully?

Answer:  Section B - Offerors are instructed not to insert a proposed amount in any CLINs specified in Section B.  Further, offerors are instructed not to insert a maximum contract value.  The Government will insert required Section B information.  Offeror must submit in accordance with the solicitation.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices.  Proposal will be evaluated in accordance with Section M of the solicitation.

82.  Section L-1.p states that cost information shall be limited to Volume III. This contradicts the instructions in L-2 for Volume I, which states that RFP Section B with direct labor rates and burdens be included in Volume I. Please clarify.

Answer: Volume I, “Offeror Information” under Section B, offerors are instructed not to insert a maximum contract value.  The Government will insert required Section B information.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices.    

80.  Section L-2.b requests RFP Section B to be completed. With all work to be done under task orders, and the estimated quantities given as “undefined,” there is no way to calculate an estimated cost or maximum cost per CLIN. Please clarify what information is to be provided in the CLINs listed in Section B.

Answer: Volume I, “Offeror Information” under Section B, offerors are instructed not to insert a maximum contract value.  The Government will insert required Section B information.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.
84.  Do you have an estimate as to what the Small Business size and revenue thresholds will be by Lot? 

Answer: The overall NAICS assigned is 541211, business size $7M. 

85.  What are the criteria / thresholds for Lot 2 classification? Please clarify the NAIC codes that will be used to form the Lot structures.

Answer:  The criteria/threshold for Lot II is in accordance with FAR 19.1 reserved for small businesses.  The NAICS code for the entire procurement is 541211.
86.  Is it envisioned that SDBs will be included in Lot I or Lot II?

Answer: Lot I is designated for HUBZone, SDVOSB and 8(a) concerns.

87.  Will there be a separate Lot for Small Disadvantaged Business (women owned, veteran owned) or are these groups be considered part of Lot 2?

Answer:  Lot II is designated for all other Small Businesses not incorporated in Lot I.
88.  Since SBA regulations have been published, will the Government consider including SDVOSB in Lot I?

Answer:  Lot I is designated for 8(a), HUBZone and Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Businesses (SDVOSB).

89.  Is a Vietnam Veteran Service Disabled start up Small Business eligible for Lot I bids?

Answer:  Lot I is reserved for HUBZone, 8(a), and Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) companies.  Any Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business must be certified by SBA to be qualified as an SDVOSB.
90.  Can a start-up service disable Vietnam veteran owned company bid in Lot one of this contract?

Answer: Lot I is reserved for HUBZone, 8(a), and SDVOSB companies.

91.  Under Lot III, can a subcontractor on the prime contractor's team propose on a task order if the prime declines to bid such a task order?

Answer:  Under Lot III in a teaming arrangement, a subcontractor is unable to bid on a contract if the prime declines the task order. The Government does not have privity with the subcontract.  The contractual agreement is with the prime contractor.

92.  If the “reserve lot structure” allows a pass-through will the 8(a)/SDB be specified with the revenue (contract value) passed through?  If so, this could materially affect the SDB/8(a) size standard.

Answer: For Lots I and II only.  The intent for the Lot I and II lot structure is to increase participation of small business, 8(a), HUBZone and Small Disabled Veteran Owned Small Businesses.  In order to insure that the prime contractors in lots I and II are performing meaningful portions of the required effort, prime contractors shall be required to perform at least twenty-five to forty percent of the proposed effort specified in each task order awarded to that Prime.  The percentage of work actually performed by the Prime in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions in Lots I and II.  For example, a Prime that actually performs forty percent of the work will be rated higher for this evaluation factor than a Prime that actually performs twenty-five percent of the work.  Similarly, a Prime that actually performs greater than forty percent of the work will be rated higher for this evaluation factor than a Prime that actually performs forty percent of the work.  Failure to meet the mandatory minimum of twenty-five percent may impact the receipt of future awards.
93.  Please confirm that there is not a specific % requirement for small business performance of work at the task order level.

Answer: For Lots I and II only.  The intent for the Lot I and II lot structure is to increase participation of small business, 8(a), HUBZone and Small Disabled Veteran Owned Small Businesses.  In order to insure that the prime contractors in lots I and II are performing meaningful portions of the required effort, prime contractors shall be required to perform at least twenty-five to forty percent of the proposed effort specified in each task order awarded to that Prime.  The percentage of work actually performed by the Prime in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions in Lots I and II.  For example, a Prime that actually performs forty percent of the work will be rated higher for this evaluation factor than a Prime that actually performs twenty-five percent of the work.  Similarly, a Prime that actually performs greater than forty percent of the work will be rated higher for this evaluation factor than a Prime that actually performs forty percent of the work.  Failure to meet the mandatory minimum of twenty-five percent may impact the receipt of future awards.

94.  In order to encourage the spirit of the Lots and tiering approach, it appears the use of 8(a)/HUBZone firms & small businesses by large firms as teaming partners to be contrary to the strategy.  Do you anticipate precluding small businesses/8(a)'s from utilizing large businesses as teaming partners?  One suggestion, require small businesses/8(a)'s to utilize other than Lot III firms as teaming partners.  In this manner, it forces small businesses to either work together or allow the task to move to Lot III firms.

Answer:  For Lots I and II only, prime contractors shall be required to perform at least 25% to 40 % of the proposed effort specified in each task order.  The percentage of work performed by the prime contractor in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions for Lots I and II.

95.  Is the prime contractor responsible for their subcontractors who are not exempt from CAS Compliance?  

Answer: Yes, the following is guidance from DCAA's Contract Audit Manual about the prime contractor's responsibility for subcontract surveillance.

DCAA Contract Audit Manual (July 2004) 

5-611.2 Subcontract Surveillance 
Administration of Subcontracts. Advantages gained by prudent and capable efforts in planning and negotiating subcontracts can be dissipated through the failure of upper-tier contractors to administer subcontracts properly. Upper-tier contractors must be aware of the progress of the subcontracts to ensure timely delivery of an acceptable product. When the subcontract is other than firm-fixed-price, the upper tier contractor must also maintain surveillance over subcontract costs to keep current with the financial aspects of the upper-tier contract. The cognizant auditor should review and evaluate the upper-tier contractor's policies and practices pertaining to the administrative and technical controls exercised over delivery schedules, change orders, modification notices, and overall costs. The contractor should have a policy and procedures for alerting the Government on award of all auditable subcontracts (those requiring interim and final audits)and a method for notifying the Government of potential significant sub contract problems that may impact delivery, quality, or price. 

a. In evaluating the upper-tier contractor's procedures for controlling delivery 

schedules, determine whether: 

(1) some form of register or control is maintained to "flag" delivery due dates; 

(2) procedures are in effect to expedite delivery of subcontract material, particularly when it is apparent that the supplier will not meet the established delivery date, or is in fact delinquent; and

(3) corrective action is taken when the supplier is delinquent in delivery schedules including, where appropriate, adjustment of the purchase price.

b. In evaluating the upper-tier contractor's procedures for controlling change orders and modification notices, determine: 

(1) if the upper-tier contractor evaluates the delivery schedules when engineering changes have been introduced; 

(2) the timeliness of notification from the upper-tier contractor to subcontractors when modifications are introduced into production; and

(3) the adequacy of the action taken by upper-tier contractors when change orders or modification notices affect cost. 

c. The evaluation of the upper-tier con-tractor's procedures relative to cost controls should be directed to the: 

(1) production and financial controls, with emphasis on those controls which ensure that physical progress of production is commensurate with reimbursement; 

(2) timeliness and adequacy of the repricing action when production is performed under redeterminable subcontracts (including a determination of the timeliness of recoveries resulting from downward repricing actions); 

(3) propriety of the costs generated by the subcontractor, particularly when the upper-tier contractor is also a subcontractor to the same or a lower-tier subcontractor; and, 

(4) audit of progress payments (refer to 5-1107.7 billing system audit of subcontractor progress payments). 

d. 
In evaluating the upper-tier contractor's procedures for adequate documentation, determine whether contractor representatives are required to prepare trip reports covering each visit to a subcontractor. Procedures should require timely reporting of significant and relevant issues including additional funding actions and status of physical progress in relation to costs incurred. Subcontractor financial reports should be adequately supported by trip report documentation. 

e. 
Subcontract Changes. Procedures should be in place to document and justify the 

reasons for subcontract changes, which affect cost or price. The Government is at risk when the cost of the subcontract, before the change, has exceeded or is expected to exceed original estimates. Lack of adequate procedures could result in changes, which have been overpriced to avoid an overall loss or to provide total profit or fee in accordance with original contract estimates. 

f.
Audit of Subcontracts. Timely consideration of redeterminable, incentive, and cost-

type subcontracts is essential to the audit of upper-tier contracts. The Government's interest in these types of subcontracts is similar to its interests in costs of variable price prime contracts when the subcontract awards are made in a chain unbroken by a firm-fixed-price subcontract. When the up-per-tier contractor proposes to audit records of a subcontractor, evaluate: 

(1) the procedures which address the extent of coordination between the contractor's purchasing and audit function; 

(2) criteria established by the contractor for waiving audits;

(3) established procedures for ensuring that the Government is notified when access to subcontractor records is denied the upper-tier contractor (6-800);

(4) independence and qualifications of the contractor's auditors; and 

(5) adequacy of their audit programs and working papers (see also 4-1000). Procedures should ensure that adequate controls are maintained for early identification of auditable subcontracts (see 6-802). 

5-612 Purchasing System - Information Technology System Internal Controls 

a. Where information technology (IT) is used in significant financial applications, control activities are sometimes defined by classifying them into two types, IT general controls and IT application controls. Whether the control activities are classified by the auditor as general or applications controls, the objectives of control activities remain the same: to provide reasonable, but not necessarily absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded from unauthorized use or disposition and that financial and cost records are reliable to permit the preparation of financial statements and cost representations. 

b. The auditor should review the IT general controls and the Purchasing System application controls to determine if they have been designed according to management direction, GAAP, and applicable Government regulations and that internal controls are operating effectively to provide reliability of and security over the data processed. 

c. General controls are composed of: 

(1) organization and operation controls, 

(2) systems development and documentation controls, 

(3) hardware and systems software controls, and 

(4) data and procedural controls. (See 5400 for a more detailed explanation of general internal controls.)

d. Purchasing system application control activities are applied to the input, processing, and output phases of this single IT application. In contrast, IT general controls affect all system applications and operational elements of all IT systems. Separate control activities are developed for each unique application system, such as labor distribution, inventory control, and in this instance, purchasing. Although some application control activities affect only one or just a few control objectives, most of the control activities are designed to prevent or detect several types of errors in most or all phases of the application. (See 5-1400 for a more detailed explanation of application internal controls.) 

96.  Under Lot III, if a large business is a subcontractor and not CAS compliant, can they bid on selective task orders?

Answer: Only prime contractors can be on selective task orders.

97.  Under Lot 1 and 2, does the CAS compliance exemption rule only stay with the 8(a) or small business and can it be pushed down to a large business who is a subcontractor to the proposed prime contractor?

Answer:  The CAS compliance exemption rule applies to Lots I, II and III.  Each subcontract would have to be reviewed for CAS applicability on its own merits. The following CAS flowchart is guidance for CAS applicability.

98.  If a firm decided to use rates established by GSA, will these rated be subjected to DCAA verification?  If these rates are accepted, will the firm still have to submit G&A, profit, etc. since they are imbedded within the GSA rates?

Answer:  At the PCO discretion, GSA rates are subjected to DCAA verification.  Offeror proposed rate should be submitted in accordance with the solicitation.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices. 
99.  Will large business entities be required to use the Small Business established pricing rates (i.e. GSA rates) as subcontractor to Small Business?

Answer: Contractors will determine the rates to propose.  Yes, use the rates that are derived after cost buildup as explained in FAR 15.408 Table 15-2 (Direct Labor and Indirect Expense Rates). DCAA pamphlet "Information for Contractors" available on DCAA's public website (www.dcaa.mil) is a useful source for showing how indirect expense rates are developed.
100.  Can a Small Business bid on a cost type task order and be non-CAS covered?

Answer:  Small businesses are exempt from CAS coverage however, a non-CAS covered small business must have an approved accounting system in order to be eligible for cost reimbursement orders. 

Requirements For Adequate Accounting System:

2-301.2 Detailed Provisions of SF 1408 (Reference Figure 2-3-1, Page 2 of 2) 
a. Proper segregation of direct costs from indirect costs. DCAA will review the accounting system to determine if direct costs are segregated from indirect costs. Direct costs are defined in FAR 31.202 as any cost that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost objective (e.g., a contract). An example would be labor specifically identified to the contract, or materials purchased specifically for the contract. Contractors at times may find it impractical to identify costs specifically to a contract. FAR 31.202 states that a direct cost can be identified as an indirect cost if the dollar amount is minor, it is treated the same way for all contracts in a contractor's accounting system, and that treatment produces substantially the same results as treating the cost as a direct cost. Indirect costs are defined in FAR 31.203 as any cost not directly identified with a single, final cost objective, but identified with two or more final cost objectives or an intermediate cost objective. An example of an indirect cost would be the lighting in a manufacturing area that houses the work of several contracts. The lighting benefits all contracts, but cannot practically be identified to a specific contract. These types of costs are normally placed in an overhead or general and administrative (G&A) expense pool and allocated to contracts on some equitable basis. The cost accounting system must identify what costs are considered direct, and what costs are considered indirect. Once these criteria are defined, they must be consistently applied. 
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b. Identification and accumulation of direct costs by contract. DCAA will determine if the accounting system can accumulate costs by contract (commonly referred to as a job order cost accounting system). 

c. A logical and consistent method for the allocation of indirect costs to intermediate and final cost objectives. DCAA will determine if indirect costs are allocated to cost objectives based upon relative benefits received, or other equitable relationship, as required by FAR 31-201-4, "Determining Allocability," and 31-203, "Indirect Costs." Fundamentally, this means that a cost may not be allocated as an indirect cost to a final cost objective if other costs incurred for the same purpose have been included as direct costs of that or any other cost objective. If superficially similar costs are treated as both direct and indirect costs, the purposes for incurring the costs must be distinguishable. For example, if a contractor wishes to perform a contract which requires three firemen on 24-hour duty at a fixed-post to provide protection against damage to highly flammable materials used on the contract, but the contractor already has a firefighting force for general protection of the plant, which is treated as an indirect cost and allocated to all contracts, the contractor may charge the cost of three of the post firemen directly to the particular contract requiring them. In this example, the contractor may also allocate a portion of the remaining cost of the general firefighting force to the same contract only if the separate classes of firemen can be shown to serve different purposes consistently (that is: (a) costs charged directly to the contract are only costs of three contract-required firemen at a fixed post who are protecting contract materials, and (b) no costs of these firemen are ever included in the indirect cost pool). 

d. Accumulation of costs under general ledger control. DCAA will determine if the job order cost accounting system can be reconciled with the general ledger, and that the company accounting system is controlled by the general ledger. 

e. A timekeeping system that identifies employees' labor by intermediate or final cost objectives. DCAA will determine whether a contractor's timekeeping system has the ability to track employees' time spent on each work activity. (See Section 2-302 for further information on timekeeping procedures and controls.) 

f. A labor distribution system that charges direct and indirect labor to the appropriate cost objectives. This is interconnected with the discussion of timekeeping. Once an employee's time is segregated as described in paragraph 2-301.2e, the costs must be allocated to the appropriate cost objective(s). 

g. Interim (at least monthly) determination of costs charged to a contract through routine posting to books of account. DCAA will determine if the accounting system produces appropriate reports that show the results of charges to contracts. These reports should be produced at least monthly. 

h. Exclusion from costs charged to Government contracts of amounts that are not allowable pursuant to FAR Part 31, Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, or other contract provisions. The FAR identifies some costs as expressly unallowable: e.g., bad debts (FAR 31.205-3); contingencies (FAR 31.205-7); contributions or donations (FAR 31-205-8); and entertainment (FAR 31.205-14), and requires that they be excluded from proposals and billings. Costs mutually agreed to be unallowable between the contractor and the contracting officer also may not be proposed or billed. DCAA will determine if the accounting system identifies these expressly unallowable costs and segregates them in the books and records (or on some alternate acceptable informal basis that readily reconciles with the books and records). While these costs may be legitimate business expenses, they will not be accepted by the U.S. Government as allowable contract costs. FAR 42.709 authorizes officers to assess a penalty if a contractor claims an expressly unallowable cost in (1) the final indirect cost rate proposal or (2) the final statement of costs incurred or estimated to be incurred under a fixed-price incentive contract. 

i. Identification of costs by contract line item and units (as if each unit or line item was a separate contract) if required by the proposed contract. Some contracts require that the cost of certain items be readily identifiable. In such cases, DCAA will review a contractor's accounting system to determine if a contractor can comply with such requirements. 

j. Segregation of preproduction costs from production costs. DCAA will review a contractor's accounting system to determine that the costs can be identified in this manner.
CAS exemptions are as follows:
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8-103.2 CAS Exemptions 

The following categories of contracts and subcontracts are exempt from all CAS requirements (48 CFR 9903.201-1): 

a. Sealed bid contracts. 

b. Negotiated contracts and subcontracts (including interdivisional work orders) less than $500,000. 

c. Contracts and subcontracts with small businesses. FAR Subpart 19.3 addresses determination of status as a small business. A small business (offeror) is one, which represents, through a written self certification, that it is a small business concern in connection with a specific solicitation and has not been determined by the Small Business Administration (SBA) to be other than a small business. The contracting officer accepts an offeror's representation unless that representation is challenged or questioned. If the status is challenged, the SBA will evaluate the status of the concern and make a determination. (Specific standards appear in Part 121 of Title 13 of the Code of Federal Regulations.)

d. Contracts and subcontracts with foreign governments or their agents or instrumentalities or, insofar as the requirements of CAS other than CAS 401 and 402 are concerned, any contract or subcontract awarded to a foreign concern. 

e. Contracts and subcontracts in which the price is set by law or regulation. 

f. Firm-fixed-price contracts and subcontracts for the acquisition of commercial items. 

g. Contracts or subcontracts less than $7.5 million, provided that, at the time of award, the business unit of the contractor or subcontractor is not currently performing any CAS-covered contracts or subcontracts valued at $7.5 million or greater. “Currently performing” is defined in 48 CFR 9903.301, Definitions. A contract is being currently performed if the contractor has not yet received notification of final acceptance of all supplies, services, and data deliverable under the contract (including options). “Currently performing” is intended to reflect the period of time when work is being performed on contractual effort. The period ends when the Government notifies the contractor of final acceptance of all items under the contract. If a contractor is currently performing a CAS covered contract of $7.5 million or greater, CAS coverage is triggered and new awards are subject to CAS (unless they meet another exemption under 9903.201-1(b)). 

h. Contracts and subcontracts awarded to a United Kingdom contractor for performance substantially in the United Kingdom, provided that the contractor has filed with the United Kingdom Ministry of Defense a completed Disclosure Statement, which shall adequately describe its cost accounting practices.

i. Subcontracts under the NATO PHM Ship program to be performed outside the United States by a foreign concern. 

j. Contracts and subcontracts to be executed and performed entirely outside the United States, its territories, and possessions. 

k. Firm-fixed-price contracts and subcontracts awarded on the basis of adequate price competition without submission of cost or pricing data. 
102.  What if a large subcontractor (not a small business or 8a) is not compliant with CAS.  What is the expectation of the prime?

Answer:  FAR 30.603 states that the subcontractor's ACO is responsible for CAS administration.  In accordance with FAR 30.603 “Subcontract administration”, When a negotiated CAS price adjustment or a determination of noncompliance is required at the subcontract level, the ACO cognizant of the subcontractor shall make the determination and advise the ACO cognizant of the prime contractor or next higher tier subcontractor of the decision. The ACOs cognizant of higher tier subcontractors or prime contractors shall not reverse the determination of the ACO cognizant of the subcontractor. 

103.  In our experience and understanding of the FAR, services sought in this solicitation are commercial items.  It is our understanding, then, that it is appropriate to propose rates based on our commercial pricing, rather than on a cost build-up.  The work up of our commercial pricing based rates would be subject to DCAA review for reasonableness.  Please state your point of view on this matter and whether such a proposal would be acceptable.

Answer:  The offerors proposed rates must be submitted in accordance with the solicitation requirements.  Proposals must be submitted in accordance with the solicitation.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices.  The proposed Time and Materials rates shall clearly demonstrate the individual cost elements.  If DCAA is requested by the PCO, cost buildup analysis will be used.  DCAA's Contract Audit Manual (CAM) provides the auditor the following guidance in verifying information other than cost or pricing data.
9-207 Audits of Proposals Based on Information Other Than Cost or Pricing Data 
a. Auditors may not perform examinations and render opinions on the acceptability of proposals as the basis for negotiation of a fair and reasonable price that are supported only by sales or pricing information because suitable criteria to judge the price and sales information is not available. The attestation standards require that the auditor conduct the audit only “if he or she has reason to believe that the subject matter is capable of evaluation against criteria that are suitable and available to users.” The criteria must be objective, measurable, complete, and relevant to the subject matter. In the past, the FAR contained such criteria. However, changes made to the FAR as a result of the Federal Acquisition Streamlining Act of 1994 and the Clinger-Cohen Act of 1996, deleted the Standard Form 1412 and the specific criteria against which price and sales information could be judged. The price and sales information can assist the contracting officer in determining if the price is fair and reasonable. To assist contracting officers in such cases, auditors should perform applications of agreed-upon procedures. 

Cost or pricing data requirements are based on FAR 15.408, Table 15-2.

104.  RFP page 67 H-3, Would the government consider accepting aggregate targets for Small Disadvantaged Business participation on a large business primed contract work in lieu of total dollars and percentage allocations by subcontractor? [We consider that setting targets by subcontractor would be inaccurate and unreliable as a result of: (1) Lot structure proposed by the government which makes it difficult to predict Lot I and Lot II subcontractor availability; (2) Independence issues that may exclude subcontractors from expected work allocations; and (3) Uncertainty regarding specific tasks and relevant skill sets required under this contract.]. 

Answer: See revised H-3 clause “TARGETS FOR THE SMALL DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS (SDB) PARTICIPATE PROGRAM.” 
105.  If a prime contractor conducts the IT and/or audit assessment work, will they be allowed to do the associated remediation work under a separate contract?  Is the government's response the same for subcontractors to the prime?

Answer: Yes they can do the remediation work but not the audit.  The remediation actions will be the responsibility of the Component that underwent the assessment.  
106.  Define key personnel.

Answer:  Key personnel at the contract level include those individuals (partners or managers) responsible for the overall contract.

107.  If all key personnel are defined as managers and above, should the contractor provide the information for all their key personnel as part of their response to the MAC.  If you consider the subcontractors, the number of key personnel will be significant.

Answer:  Yes, offerors should include all key personnel (at the prime and subcontract levels) in their response to the MAC.

108.  When responding to a task order, can the contractor include the resumes of individuals who were not identified as key personnel on their MAC submission?  How does the government allow contractors to respond reasonably to task orders.

Answer:  Offerors should only include the resume of identified key personnel at the contract level.  At the contract level, key personnel (partners or manager) are those individuals responsible for the overall contract.  At the task order level, contractors shall submit to the COR a list of individuals scheduled to work on the individual task orders.

109.  Are the provisions of 5252-237-9501 applicable at the task order level?  Or will it apply at the MAC level.  This is important to distinguish considering the definition of "key personnel".

Answer:  Clause 5252.237-9501 I “Addition or Substitution of Personnel (SERVICES)(SEP 1999) Alternate I (MAR 1999) (NAVAIR) is applicable to both the MAC and task order level.  Recommend revising clause to include the following: “Furthermore, the contractor agrees to assign only those personnel assigned at the task order level who are necessary to fulfill task order requirements.”

110.  RFP page 84, 5252.237-9501 I ADDITION OR SUBSTITUTION OF PERSONNEL (SERVICES) (SEP 1999) ALTERNATE I (MAR 1999) (NAVAIR), paragraph (a) “The contractor agrees to assign only those key personnel whose resumes were submitted and approved and who are necessary to fulfill the requirements of the effort”  Please provide clarification regarding the applicability of this clause.  As described in the Draft RFP, this will be a Multiple-Award Contract with a variety of task orders covering IT assessments, SAS 70/88 reviews, Auditability Assessments, CFO Act Audits and Agreed Upon Procedures tasks.  Since these tasks will require different skill sets, does the OIG envision that all key personnel for all tasks are required to be identified during the submission of proposals for the MAC?  Suggest that the key personnel requirement be applied at the task order level and not for the MAC award.  

Answer:  Under 5252.237-9501, key personnel should be identified at the contract level.  Key personnel at the contract level include those individuals (partners or managers) responsible for the overall contract.  At the task order level, contractors shall submit to the COR a list of individuals scheduled to work on the individual task orders.

111.  How many resumes and are only resumes of the prime or prime and subcontractors other contracts have the number of resumes to a specific number?

Answer: Yes, offerors should include all key personnel (at the prime and subcontract levels) in their response to the MAC.
112.  If a prime of a team is conflicted out from performing work in accordance with the GAGAS Independence standards, can the other teaming partners of the prime participate in the task order?

Answer: If the proposal was submitted as a teaming arrangement, then the teaming partners will be precluded from participating in the task order.

113.  Can a joint venture include a IPA?

Answer: Yes.
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114.  Will a contractor who performs IT assessment be allowed to contract for any related remediation work at DoD provided they do not pursue related audit work under the MAC task orders?

Answer: Yes they can do the remediation work but not the audit.  The remediation actions will be the responsibility of the Component that underwent the assessment
115.  Will the task orders under the MAC be considered performance (financial and financial related) audits as defined by GAGAS? 

Answer:  The task orders will primarily consist of the financial audits and attestation engagements as defined in Section as defined in Sections 2.5 and 2.07 of the GAO Government Auditing Standards (Yellow Book).

116.  RFP page 37 clause 2.6, notes that the contractor should address ”any existing, ongoing, or planned non-audit services in the past five years related to the specific component or Agency.”  Should this information be included in the response to the draft solicitation or is it only required at the task order level?  Also, is this information being requested for purposes of evaluation of independence and if so will work from the past three years be sufficient? 

Answer:  This information is only required at the task order level.  We agree with the proposed change from 5 years to 3 years
117.  On RFP page 32 under 5252.232-9506 (c), will the award fee vary by task order.  If so, on what basis, and in what range?

Answer:  The decision to issue award fee task orders and its basis will vary per task order.  The basis and ranges will be determined upon the issuance of each task order.

118.  How many task orders are expected to be solicited on a monthly basis?

Answer: The Government does not have the number of task order to be awarded on a monthly basis.
119.  What task orders are expected in each of the first six months?

Answer: The Government does not have a list of task orders to be awarded in the first six months.
120.  How are the task orders expected to be organized for auditability assessments?  By financial statement line item across agencies or by individual agency? 

Answer: The Government does not have a list of organized task orders for auditability assessments.

121.  What is the expected turnaround time on task orders once proposals are received?

Answer:  On average, task orders will awarded within approximately six weeks after receipt of proposals. 

122.  Are task orders expected to be directed to existing incumbents for existing audit relationships within DoD agencies?  If so, which agencies and audit firms?

Answer:  No. 
123.  Will the entire task order solicitation and notification process be made publicly available?  If so, please describe.

Answer:  No.  

124.  Recent IT assessment task orders have required security clearances.  Will that hold true on the MAC task orders.  How does DoD OIG anticipate facilitating the need to have security clearances at the task orders if some of these clearances generally cannot occur until task orders are won?  Will the DoD OIG support the ability of contractors to process security clearances prior to award of MAC or subsequent to award of MAC and prior to award of task orders?

Answer:  Security level requirements will be determined by the specific task order requirements.  After the security level requirements have been determined at the task order level, the COR will determine the specific personnel required to have security level clearance.  Contractors are encouraged to begin the process of security classification.  In order to obtain a facility security clearance, sponsorship is required.  In addition, interim secret clearances will be acceptable for some of the contract work.  According to the Defense Security Service, these clearances are typically processed within a week.  For additional information, please visit the Defense Security Service website at www.dss.mil and click on Industrial Security/Facility Security Clearances or contact Mr. Richard Lawhorn (richard.lawhorn@mail.dss.mil; 703- 325-5327) at the Defense Security Service for further information.

125.  RFP page 36 clause 2.3 states, "The contractor is responsible for obtaining employee security clearances and ensuring that all persons working on this effort are U.S. citizens."  In contrast, RFP page 67 clause, H-2 (e) states "The planned utilization of non-U.S. citizens in task order performance must be identified by name and country of citizenship in the task order proposal," apparently requiring only that non-US citizens be identified.  Please clarify language regarding use of U.S. versus non-U.S. citizens.

Answer:  U.S. citizenship is required for task order performance.  See revised Clause H-2 “Security Requirements”.
126.  Who will be performing the project management for NAVAIR?  For DoD OIG?

Answer: Project management will be performed by the OIG DoD, NAVAIR and appointed/approved Contracting Officers Representatives.

127.  What are the roles of NAVAIR and DoD OIG in managing the task orders?

Answer: Contracting Officers Representatives (CORs) will be nominated by the OIG DoD and approved/appointed by the Procuring Contracting Officer at the task order level.  The COR will oversee the task orders daily activities and be responsible for the review and approval of all deliverables.  The COR will work closely with the OIG DoD and PCO.

128.  When will the final RFP be issued following the Industry Day?

Answer: The Government anticipates releasing the final RFP in August 2004.
129.  How long will respondents have to submit a proposal once the final RFP is issued?

Answer: The due date for proposals will be 30 days after release of final RFP.  However, offeror should monitor the OIG DOD (www.dodig.osd.mil/audit/financial/financial.htm) and NAVAIR (www.navair.navy.mil/doing_business/open_solicitiations) for updates and unforeseen changes.

130.  When will the award be announced following the submission of the proposal?

Answer: The Government anticipates contract award in November 2004.
131.  During the CFO Industry Day, the government stated “It is anticipated that awards will be made the beginning of fiscal year 2005.”  Is the contract award still anticipated to be made in October 2004?

Answer:  The Government anticipates contract award in November 2004.

132.  Will the use of a Contractor Teaming Arrangement (CTA) in accordance with FAR 8.4 be allowed under this solicitation? Under a CTA, one firm would be designated as the Lead Contractor Team Member and serve as the primary POC for the Government. Other firms would be identified as Contractor Team Members (CTMs). Additionally, other firms would be proposed as subcontractor firms including MWOB firms. A CTA would provide for a single POC for the government and provide an opportunity for relevant qualifications for the CTMs under the Lead Contractor. The Defense Logistics Agency utilizes a CTA for its current auditability assessment contract.

Answer: This procurement is not for Federal Supply Services as stated in FAR 8.4.  This procurement is in accordance with FAR part 6.

133.  Is there a minimum percentage of services that must be performed by a Lot I and Lot II firm, exclusive of subcontractors?

Answer:  For Lots I and II only, prime contractors shall be required to perform at least 25% to 40 % of the proposed effort specified in each task order.  The percentage of work performed by the prime contractor in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions for Lots I and II.

134.  How will compliance with subcontracting goals be monitored by OIG DoD?  Is compliance assessed at the task order level only?  What compliance reporting will be requested of the IPA/contractors?

Answer:  The Administrative Contracting Officer will review all subcontracting plans.  The small business subcontracting plan for large businesses will be viewed and monitored at the task order level.  
135.  Will there be any sample or representative task orders included in the final solicitation that will require technical and/or cost responses?

Answer: The Government will not be providing samples or representative task orders in the final solicitation that will require technical and/or cost responses.

136.  Section L-2(i) indicates that offerors must submit proof that exclusive teaming agreements do not inhibit competition. How does the government define “exclusivity” in the context of this proposal? If the offeror’s teaming agreements are not considered “exclusive,” must copies of the agreements be submitted?

Answer:  In accordance with clause 5252.215-9505, offerors are required to provide a copy of all teaming arrangements.  The offeror has the burden of proving that an exclusive teaming arrangement does not inhibit competition.  An exclusive teaming arrangement is of the sort that precludes a person, business, company, team or contractor from participating in another proposal, either individually or as a team.

137.  Section L-3b(3) requires submission of a Small Business Subcontracting Strategy, which is separate but consistent with the Small Business Subcontracting Plan. There is no requirement for a Subcontracting Plan in the instructions for Volumes I or III. Should both the Plan and the Strategy be included in Volume II?  

Answer: The Small Disadvantage Business Subcontracting Strategy and Small Business Subcontracting Plan should be included in Volume II.

138.  Section L-4 does not request any information on cost elements (e.g., indirect cost rates, etc) to be used to price Cost-Plus task orders. Please clarify where this information is to be provided.

Answer: Cost and pricing data, if applicable, will be required at the task order level.

139.  C-2 Uncompensated Overtime, page 53, L-4 Volume III Price - b, page 165, Do subcontractors need to prepare a statement regarding Uncompensated Overtime?

Answer: In accordance with FAR 52.237-10(e) “Identification of Uncompensated Overtime”, offerors shall include a copy of its policy addressing uncompensated overtime with its proposal.

140.  5252.232.9001 Submission of Invoices, page 63, Will a Certificate of Performance be required for the subcontractor?  The RFP states that it should be provided with each invoice submittal.

Answer: For each awarded task order, prime contractors shall submit a certificate of performance for the prime (including subcontractors), in an original and one copy, to the assigned Contracting Officer’s Representative (COR).

141.  Will the use of 2nd tier subs be permitted to assist in the assessment of financial management information technology systems?

Answer: The use of 2nd tier subs should be identified as a business arrangement and relationship such as joint venture, teaming partners and major subcontractors.  Any OCI issues for prime or subcontractors will be based on the facts and circumstances surrounding the work to be performed.  Independence responses will have to be based on facts and circumstances of the contractor’s situation regarding involvement with systems or accounting entities.  
142.  Both the Air Force and Army have planned acquisitions to replace their legacy accounting systems with COTS.  Should these legacy systems be assessed under this IDIQ (as STANFINS was under an earlier separate acquisition), will contractors that assess the legacy systems be prevented from bidding on the replacement systems because of OCI issues? 

Answer: Independence responses may vary depending on the facts and circumstances of the contractor’s situation.  The contractor’s involvement or degree of involvement with systems and or accounting entities will affect the independent responses.

143.  Are all contactor personnel working on this effort required to have a government security clearance?

Answer: Security level requirements will be determined by the specific task order requirements.

144.  Can a team propose for a task order with a Lot I or Lot II team member as the prime for that task order?

Answer:  No, only the prime contractor can propose on behalf of the entire team. 

145.  Must each Lot I or Lot II member submit a proposal for the MAC in order to do the above?

Answer:  No, only the prime contractor can propose on behalf of the entire team.

146.  If we do not bid on cost-based CLINs will our proposal be rejected?

Answer: No, contractors that do not bid on cost-based CLINs proposal will not be rejected.

147.  What happens if my current pricing structure is higher than my GSA rates, can higher rates be used?  

Answer:  Contractors will determine the rates to propose.  Yes, use the rates that are derived after cost buildup as explained in FAR 15.408 Table 15-2 (Direct Labor and Indirect Expense Rates). DCAA pamphlet "Information for Contractors" available on DCAA's public website (www.dcaa.mil) is a useful source for showing how indirect expense rates are developed. 

148.  Will second tier subs (8(a)/HUBZone/Small Businesses) count for a Lot III goal for 8(a)/HUBZone and Small Businesses?

Answer:  No, only on the first tier.

149.  The Government is discouraging exclusive team arrangement however, the RFP states that any additions or deletions to teaming are discouraged and can only be accomplished via contract modification.   Please clarify these statements.

Answer: The contracts will be awarded to successful offerors based on the technical expertise of the proposed team.  If after receipt of a contract a prime wishes to change composition team (e.g. add or delete a subcontractor) written request must be submitted to and approved by the PCO.

150.  Can you use your approved GSA rates for this contract?  If yes, do you still need to justify the rate build up?

Answer.  Yes ,for evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices.  GSA rates may be used in the proposal.  Offerors must comply with the solicitation.  The proposed rates shall clearly demonstrate the individual cost elements.  In accordance with FAR part 15 requirements, the build-up will need to be justified based on cost or pricing requirements or information other than cost or pricing requirements.
151.  Will Cost type task orders (e.g. CPAF) lay out the fee structure before award?

Answer:  Yes, the fee structure for cost type task orders will be provided during the issuance of 48 Hour Notice of Intent Survey. 

152.  If 5 team members comprise your team on the OIG DoD award, must all 5 team members bid on each task order to propose or can you vary the team members you bid for each task order proposal submitted?

Answer:  As long as the team members proposed are listed in Attachment (4) “List of Team Members,” offerors may vary the team compositions in proposed task orders.

153.  Would you consider a bid from a Joint Venture - if so does the 8(a) have to be IPA?   If a Joint Venture does the 51% apply to labor for small business entity?

Answer: Contractors are allowed to submit joint ventures as teaming arrangements.  For offerors submitting a proposal for CFO Audit requirements, the prime contractor must be an IPA.  The 51% does not apply.

154.  How many awards?

Answer:  The Government does not have an anticipated number for awards.

155.  Is NAVAIR going to award on initials?

Answer:  NAVAIR intends to award on initial offerors. 

156.  Can subcontractors be used on task orders that were not included on the team identified in the original proposal?

Answer:  No, Attachment (4) “List of Team Members” will be incorporated into the MAC.  The contractor may not add or delete any team member from the team without prior contract modification signed by the PCO.

157.  What are the criteria for placing tasks direction in Lot III?

Answer:  The Government may unilaterally compete a specific task order requirement among contractors within a specified Lot without utilizing the cascading provision of the contract if the OIG DoD, the NAVAIR Small Business Office and the PCO agree, after a detailed review of the specific task order requirement, that the specific task order requirement should be competed solely among the contractors of a given Lot. 
158.  If a small business bids on a task competing with a large business, will the small business be given priority in pricing (i.e. small business bids $100,000 vs. large business $94,000).

Answer: Both the IG DoD and NAVAIR will establish the evaluation criteria for task orders.  Task order awards will be based on specific evaluation criteria.  Priority will not be given for proposal pricing.
159.  RFP page 61 (e) Indemnification states, “The Contractor shall indemnify and save and hold harmless the Government, and its officers, agents and employees acting for the Government, against any liability, including costs and expenses, (1) for violation of proprietary rights, copyrights, or rights of privacy or publicity, arising out of the creation, delivery, use, modification, reproduction, release, performance, display, or disclosure of any works furnished under this contract, or (2) based upon any libelous or other unlawful matter contained in such works.”  Generally, indemnification for violation of proprietary rights, copyrights, libel or unlawful matter is acceptable. Indemnification for rights of privacy or publicity is unclear and needs to be clarified/discussed with counsel.  Please explain why indemnification for violation of rights of privacy or publicity is necessary on a contract for these services? Is a statutory privacy right such as HIPAA intended?

Answer:  This is part of a standard DFARS clause.  The language will remain as written.

160.  Can you tell me what kinds of insurance are required by a contractor to perform under Solicitation N00421-04-R-0086?

Answer:  Offerors shall view Section H clauses 5252.228-9501 “Liability Insurance” as well as clauses 52.228-3, and 52.228-5.
161.  RFP page 36.  Clause 2.5.  Can you provide a copy of the Non Disclosure Agreement that the COR requires from the contractor?

Answer: See revised Section 2.5.
162.  RFP page 37, clause 2.6 requires the contractor to supply the "results or a copy of the firm's most recent internal inspection report prepared by the Public/Company Accounting Oversight Board".  The Public/Company Accounting Oversight Board (P/CAOB) began formal inspections of audit firms this year and specifically has begun limited analysis of the Big Four IPA firms. The P/CAOB inspection reports will not be available until the end of August. If the due date for the Multiple Award Contract proposal precedes the date at which results are available, the Big Four will not be able to supply the results. We suggest revising the RFP to read:  "Results or a copy of the firm’s most recent internal inspection report prepared by the Public/Company Accounting Oversight Board, if available."

Answer: See Section 2.6 revision.

163.  Please confirm that the OIG will be responsible for issuing the opinions for Task 1, SAS 70 work, and Task 2, audits.  Please indicate the type of reports (besides agreed-upon procedures report) that the contractor will be required to issue in Task 1, IT assessments and Task 2, auditability assessments and audits. 

Answer: The OIG DoD will be rendering the opinion on the financial statements thus making the OIG DoD the lead auditor.  The OIG DoD will be taking responsibility of the opinion.

164.  RFP page 52 clause 4.10.2.3 - What is the intent of the summary memorandum to the agreed upon procedures (AUP) report? The attestation standards covering AUP reports prohibit providing any conclusions whether the work was performed in accordance with GAGAS or the GAO/PCIE FAM.  

Answer:  The intent of the summary memorandum is to provide the IG DoD with a summary of the work performed at individual locations or sites during the course of the audit.  The SOW (clause  4.10.2.3) is requiring a conclusion that the contractor performed the work in accordance with GAGAS, including the attestation standards and the GAO/PCIE FAM.

165.  RFP page 46, clauses 4.1.1 and 4.1.2.  The RFP references independent accounting firms (IPA) performing audit assessments and CFO Audits.  No similar IPA language can be found on page 42, clause 3.6.2, for the performance of SAS 70/88 reviews.  However, the RFP does require the contractor to issue a Type II Report, which includes an audit opinion.  Is it your intention that this work can only be performed by IPA firms?  Please clarify.  

Answer:  No.  The OIG DoD as the statutory auditor for the DoD financial statements, will opine on the SAS 70 Type II audit.  The contractor performing the SOW will prepare the SAS 70 Type II report and the OIG DoD will sign and issue the report.  Since the OIG DoD will sign the SAS 70 Type II report a non-CPA firm can perform the SAS 70/88 audit. 

166.  The AICPA does not require independence to perform auditability assessments.  However, RFP page 46, clause 4.1.1 references that an IPA is to perform this work.  Is it NAVAIR’s intention to have different restrictions/requirements than the AICPA or GAGAS?  A potential result of this clause is that firms not qualified by AICPA standards may perform IT assessments and issue reports, thus rendering the audit opinion unreliable or the work of that contractor for future audits unreliable as well.

Answer:  The IG DoD requires the IPA firm performing the assessment to meet the independence standards since the audit assessment may transition into a the CFO audit.

167.  Will the contractor be involved with validating the remediation of actions/controls post-audit?

Answer:  The remediation actions will be the responsibility of the Component that was audited.  The IG DoD will make a decision to conduct another assessment or a full scale CFO audit based on the nature and extent of the remediation actions.  

168.  RFP page 36 clause 2.2.  AICPA standards prohibit turning over certain portions of audit documentation.  AICPA professional standards Section 339.10, states, "Audit documentation is the property of the auditor..."  GAGAS incorporates the AICPA standards.  Further, GASAS, paragraph 4.22 to 4.26 clearly defines audit documentation and provisions for providing for full and timely access to audit documentation to facilitate reliance by others on the audit work. GAGAS also clearly states that audit documentation needs to be adequately safeguarded.  Work papers include audit documentation and certain proprietary information of the organization who prepared such documentation.  This conflicts with the above clause from the RFP regarding workpaper ownership.  Please clarify.  Is it the DoD OIG's intent to have the contractor violate AICPA and GAGAS standards as well as applicable laws and regulations by marking all working papers and supporting documentation as the property of DoD and that the original work papers be delivered to the DoD OIG?

Answer:  It is the Government position that we are not violating AICPA and GAGAS standards in having the contractor to provide original working papers. The contractor may retain a copy of the working papers and audit documentation for their records however; the government will retain the original working papers and audit documentation.  Both working papers and audit documentation will be marked as the property of the U.S. government.  The OIG DoD will be rendering the opinion on the SAS 70/88 thus making the OIG DoD the lead auditor.  The OIG DoD will be taking responsibility of the opinion.  

169.  RFP page 27 clause 2.6 includes references to "internal inspection report."  Please define.  AICPA and GAGAS require that an audit organization performing audits and/or attestation engagements should have an appropriate internal quality control system in place and should undergo an external peer review.  The audit organization should prepare appropriate documentation for its system of quality control to demonstrate compliance with its polices and procedures however, there is no requirement to formally report on the internal quality control system.   The external peer review is required to review the internal quality control system and evaluate the extent of the audit organization's compliance with the quality controls policies and procedures.  GAGAS clearly states in paragraph 3.56 that the audit organization will transmit their external peer review reports to the appropriate oversight bodies and to the public in a timely manner, upon request.   As such, we suggest that the COR/DoD OIG reconsider the request for an "internal inspection report" as one is not required under the standards and the compliance aspect of having and maintaining an appropriate internal quality control system would be included in the external peer review report, which is required.

Answer:  The IG DoD will not reconsider the request for an internal inspection report.  FAM 650 states that where the peer review report is not recent, the auditor also should review the results of the audit organization's internal inspection program. If the peer review is not recent, the inspection is important in highlighting new quality control issues. The inspection generally should include reviews of documentation, interviews of staff members, and tests of functional areas.  Where the inspection is recent (usually within the past year) and the inspection report is unqualified, further review of the audit organization's qualifications is generally not required.
170.  RFP page 43 clause 3.6.3.3.3.  What is meant by "remediation plan?"  Please define.  The extent of the remediation plan could be viewed as designing an internal controls system, which could impair independence.

Answer:  As stated in clause 3.6.3.3.3, the purpose of the remediation plan is for the contractor to propose corrective actions for identified deficiencies.  The independence of the IPA firm should not be impaired, because the DoD Component that was audited will ultimately determine how to correct the identified deficiencies and implement the corrective actions 

171.  RFP page 47 clause 4.7.  Should this apply to the audit assessments (page 45 clause 4.1)?  The introduction to this section is titled “4.0 Tasks 2 – Audit Assessments and CFO Audits” implying that this requirement applies to the assessment phase.   Clause 4.7 states, "the contractor shall determine whether management's assertion about the effectiveness of internal controls is fairly stated, in all material respects".  This language is used in the FAM as it relates to an opinion on internal control.  No opinion is being required for audit assessments, rather a "recommendation" report is required (clause 4.8.8).  Further, there is no indication that an audit organization will be asked to audit internal control rather the SOW indicates that the DoD OIG requires a "report on component's internal controls" (clause 4.9.6.6).  Please consider adding clarification as it relates to the audit assessment and audits.

Answer:  Section 4.7 will not be revised.  The requirement to review internal controls is contained in Section 4.5, which states that the IPA performing the audit assessment shall include the audit steps outlined in the Planning and Internal Control Phases of the FAM for a component’s financial statement or specific line item within the financial statements.  At the conclusion of the assessment, the contractor shall make a determination as to whether the component or line item can achieve an unqualified audit opinion.  If an unqualified opinion cannot be obtained, the contractor shall prepare a report addressing the deficiencies that would preclude obtaining an unqualified opinion

172.  RFP page 38, Clause 2.11.1 (Performance Metric).  Please clarify the source of the "standards and other guidance associated with performing the assessment and audits" referenced in 2.11.1.  Specifically, how will the performance be measured, is it objective or subjective, what criteria will be the standard?  Methodology is already spelled out in the FAM and FISCAM, but the level and rigor that performance could be measured against is not.  Explain against what standard the contractors' expenditures throughout the task order implementation will be measured, in 2.11.3.

Answer:  The FAM, FISCAM, and GAGAS are the standards that will apply in assessing the contractor’s performance.  The application of these standards will result in an objective assessment of the contractor’s performance.  The IG DoD will use the contractor’s proposed costs or labor hours against the actual costs to monitor the contractor’s expenditures throughout the period of the task order.

173.  RFP page 38 clause 2.11.1 - Suggest sentence be modified to read "The COR and OIG DoD will assess the methodology for performing assessments of the financial management systems, audit assessments, and CFO audits to ensure performance is conducted in accordance with standards and other guidance associated with performing assessments of financial management systems, audit assessments, and CFO audits."  The current language suggests possible impairment of independence since the OIG DoD cannot ensure the outcome of an audit.

Answer:  See Section 2.11.1 revision. 
174.  RFP page 38, Clause 2.11.3 (Cost Metric).  Explain against what standard the contractors' expenditures throughout the task order implementation will be measured, in 2.11.3.

Answer:  The IG DoD will use the contractor’s proposed costs or labor hours against the actual costs to monitor the contractor’s expenditures throughout the period of the task order.

175.  RFP page 38, Clause 2.11.3 (Cost Metric).  Define the 'personnel' in "lack of personnel" - are personnel those belong to the DoD agency or the contractor?

Answer:  The sentence in Section 2.11.3 was referring to the potential cost impact from the lack of Government personnel to support the audit.  See Section 2.11.3.

176.  Once a contractor issues a SAS 70 report to the DoD OIG, how will distribution be controlled since SAS 70s are addressed to specific users?  

Answer:  The contractor performing the SOW will prepare the SAS 70 Type II report and the OIG DoD will sign and issue the report.  The IG will be responsible for distribution of the report.

177.  As currently understood, the objective of this MAC is to establish a contract for assessing DoD financial operations and systems in order to ultimately determine the reliability of those systems and controls for financial statement audit purposes.  Given that this is the objective, what is the OIG strategy regarding the type of tasks that can be performed by non-IPA firms?  What mechanisms will the OIG implement in the selection process to ensure that the assessment work performed by non-IPA firms is conducted in conformance with Government Auditing Standards?  Relevant provisions of Government Auditing Standards that could pose greater challenges to non-IPA firms include contractor internal systems for assessing independence, continuing professional education requirements and standards relating to the documentation and reporting of the results of work.  Additionally, if work is not performed by an IPA and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, has the OIG considered the ability of IPA firms to rely upon this work when conducting CFO Audits?  It is our belief that in order to provide reliance on the work of these IT assessments and auditability assessments, they should be conducted by an IPA firm and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  

Answer:  The IG DoD intends to allow non-IPA firms to compete for work under Section 3.0  TASKS 1 - ASSESSMENTS OF DOD FINANCIAL MANGEMENT SYSTEMS.  The firms will have to demonstrate in its proposal that the firm has the management, technical, and quality control qualifications to perform under this contract.  The non-IPA firms will be required to perform the work specified in the individual task orders.  The IG DoD as the principle auditor will use FAM 650 to oversee the individual task orders.  FAM 650 provides guidance on using the work of other auditors and specialists and the nature and extent of procedures the auditor should perform.  In addition, the IG DoD as the principle or lead auditor, responsible for signing and issuing the opinions, will determine the extent that the work can be relied upon.
178.  Based on the manner in which the RFP was organized, non-IPA firms are subject to the independence standards and other yellow book requirements, which in effect eliminate them from competing for any tasks.  For example, Section C, 2.0 requirements are applicable to Section 3.0 and Section 4.0 thus requiring independence for all tasks under this procurement.  Was it your intention to limit all the tasks to IPA firms for all Lots?

Answer:  Adherence to GAGAS and the independence standards does not eliminate the non-IPA firms from competing for the task described in Section 3.0  TASKS 1 - ASSESSMENTS OF DOD FINANCIAL MANGEMENT SYSTEMS.

179.  Independence standards are much more stringent than OCI?  Was it NAVAIR's intention to impose stricter requirements on IPA firms for auditability assessments and non-IPA firms for both IT and auditability assessments?

Answer:  The IG DoD requires that both IPA and non-IPA firms satisfy the same independence requirements.  The two overarching principles of the independence standard that the IG DoD will apply to the IPA and non-IPA firms are that a contractor:

· should not perform management functions or make management decisions and 

· should not audit their own work or provide nonaudit services in situations where the amounts or services involved are significant/material to the subject matter of the audit.

180.  What quality control will exist over audit assessment work if primed by non-IPA firm?  How does the DoD OIG expect to ensure that they receive accurate and reliable assessments?

Answer:  The IG DoD will require audit assessment work performed under Section 4.0 -Task 2 of the contract to be performed by an IPA.

181.  Is it the intent of the DoD OIG for Task 2, for both the audit assessment and audit work, that it be performed by IPAs?

Answer:  Yes, the IG DoD requires IPA firms to perform the task orders issued under Section 4.0 -Task 2 of the contract.

182.  Is it the intent of the DoD OIG for the proposed contractor to issue an opinion on the SAS 70 work and the CFO audit under Tasks 1 and 2?

Answer:  The OIG DoD as the statutory auditor for the DoD financial statements, will opine on the SAS 70 Type II audits and the CFO audits.  The contractor performing the SOW will prepare the SAS 70 Type II report or CFO opinion report and the OIG DoD will sign and issue the report.

183.  Is it the intent of the DoD OIG to rely on the CFO act audit (including opinion) that a contractor will issue and refer to the IPA in any DoD OIG issued opinion?

Answer:  The OIG DoD as the statutory auditor for the DoD financial statements, will opine on the SAS 70 Type II audits and the CFO audits.  The contractor performing the SOW will prepare the SAS 70 Type II report or CFO opinion report and the OIG DoD will sign and issue the report.

184.  Is it the intent of the DoD OIG for the work performed by one contractor to be relied on by another contractor under a separate task order? Same question as it relates to opinion - will the DoD OIG expect that a contractor who performs a audit to rely on and/or refer to the work performed on a related audit assessment and /or IT assessment?

Answer:  The contractors may have to rely on the work performed by another contractor on a separate task order.  However, IG DoD as the principle or lead auditor, responsible for signing and issuing the opinions, will determine the extent that the work can be relied upon.  

185.  Is it the intent of the DoD OIG that the work performed on all the tasks will require that the proposed contractor be independent as it relates to the task orders they are performing, specifically the IT and audit assessments?

Answer:  Yes, it is the IG DoD intention that independence will be addressed at the task order level.

186.  Is it the intent of the DoD OIG to award task orders to non-IPA contractors, serving as the prime on the task order, to perform work under the tasks, specifically the IT and audit assessment work considering that such work is inherently "audit procedures"?  Consider the same question if the DoD OIG intends to have the work relied upon by another contractor under a different task order.

Answer:  The IG DoD intends to allow non-IPA firms to compete for work under Section 3.0  TASKS 1 - ASSESSMENTS OF DOD FINANCIAL MANGEMENT SYSTEMS.  The assessment work in Section 4.0 -Task 2 of the contract will have to be performed by an IPA.  The IG DoD as the principle or lead auditor, responsible for signing and issuing the opinions, will determine the extent that the work can be relied upon.
187.  How many IT assessments does the DoD OIG realistically expect to issue under task orders in total and each of the three years?

Answer:  The IG DoD cannot predetermine the number of task orders that will be issued under this contract.

188.  How many SAS 70/88 task orders does the DoD OIG realistically expect to issue under task orders in total and each of the three years?

Answer:  The IG DoD cannot predetermine the number of task orders that will be issued under this contract.

189.  Is post-remediation that may result from the IT or audit assessment be part of the task orders that are issued from the MAC?

Answer:  The validation of the remediation actions/controls will depend on the extent and nature of the remediation actions.  However, the IG DoD will determine how to validate the remediation actions, which could include competing a new task order for another assessment, performing a CFO audit or performing the work in-house.

190.  In previous Q&A information an answer provided by OIG appears to indicate that non-CPA firms can perform SAS70/88 services and OIG DoD will “…assume responsibility for the opinion while the IT firm performs the work.”  It is unclear how the OIG DoD would upgrade the services performed by firms not subject to the AICPA’s standards?  Can this position be clarified?  

Answer:  The IG DoD does not intend to upgrade the services of the firms not subject to the AICPA standards.  The firms will have to demonstrate in its proposal that the firm has the management, technical, and quality control qualifications to perform under this contract.  The non-IPA firms will be required to perform the work specified in the individual task orders.  The IG DoD as the principle auditor will use FAM 650 to oversee the individual task orders.  FAM 650 provides guidance on using the work of other auditors and specialists and the nature and extent of procedures the auditor should perform.  FAM 650 makes it clear that the principal auditor exercises considerable judgment in deciding what procedures are necessary to use the work of the other auditor or specialist.  These judgments include:

· the type of reporting,

· the auditor's evaluation of the other auditors' or specialists' independence and objectivity,

· the auditor's evaluation of the other auditors' or specialists' qualifications, and:

· the auditor's determination of the level of review.

191. What SAS70/88 awards have been made and when will those reports be available?

Answer:  Task orders for SAS 70/88 reviews of the Defense Civilian Payroll System, Standard Army Finance System, and Defense Information Systems Agency Computing Services have been awarded.  The availability of the reports has not yet been determined.

192.  In cases where OIG DoD will be signing the report for non-CPA firms, does the firm participating only have a responsibility to provide personnel and OIG DoD envisions Federal personnel will manage and direct the substance of the work?

Answer:  The non-IPA firms will be required to perform the work specified in the individual task orders.  The IG DoD as the principle auditor will use FAM 650 to oversee the individual task orders.  FAM 650 provides guidance on using the work of other auditors and specialists and the nature and extent of procedures the auditor should perform.  FAM 650 makes it clear that the principal auditor exercises considerable judgment in deciding what procedures are necessary to use the work of the other auditor or specialist.  These judgments include:

· the type of reporting,

· the auditor's evaluation of the other auditors' or specialists' 
independence and objectivity,

· the auditor's evaluation of the other auditors' or specialists' qualifications, and:

· the auditor's determination of the level of review.

193.  Section C-1.4.9.6.6, Opinion Report states “The contractor shall prepare a combined report…” Please clarify who will be signing the audit opinion, the IG or the IPA?

Answer:  The OIG DoD as the statutory auditor for the DoD financial statements, will opine on the CFO audits.  The contractor performing the SOW will prepare the combined opinion report and the OIG DoD will sign and issue the report.

194.  Is it correct to assume that Defense Agencies such as DLA and DFAS, and Field Activities are not included in the scope for Tasks 1 and 2? The response to Question 2 of the Information Assurance Industry Day Questions included 13 components. Are these the only components that may be included under this contract?

Answer:  The IG DoD may include other DoD Components (other than the 13 components) under this contract.

195.  The response to Question 4 of the CFO Industry Day Questions states that “service auditors will be available to work with contractors.” Please clarify the availability of service auditors (e.g., Army Audit Agency, Naval Audit Service, etc.) and expand on assumptions regarding their utilization.

Answer:  The use and availability of the service auditors will be determined at the task order level.  The extent that the service auditors can be used is contingent upon a commitment from the Service Audit Agencies on the number of auditors available for use on CFO audits.

196.  Page 37, 2.4.3 Subcontractors shall meet all independence requirements in Section 2.7 (should be 2.6).  Non-IPA's do not have to represent that they are independent in accordance with GAGAS.  But do need to identify potential organization conflicts of interest.  Is this the correct understanding?

Answer:  The IG DoD requires the non-IPA firms to satisfy the independence requirements.  The two overarching principles of the independence standard that the IG DoD will apply to the IPA and non-IPA firms are that a contractor:

· should not perform management functions or make management decisions and 

· should not audit their own work or provide nonaudit services in situations where the amounts or services involved are significant/material to the subject matter of the audit.

197.  The services and agencies have plans (announced and unannounced) to replace legacy accounting & feeder systems.  Man of these legacy systems will be assessed under the IDIQ.  Will the contractor that assesses legacy systems that are eventually replaced, be conflicted out of bidding on the replacement systems? 

Answer: Dependent upon the specific facts and circumstances.  
198.  Will the independence requirements that apply to auditors (Task 2) also apply to the information assurance contractors (Task 1)?

Answer:  Yes, independence requirements apply to both Tasks 1 and 2.

199.  Answers to questions have indicated openness to performing task orders for task 1 work by firms that are not CPA, IPA firms.  This suggests that Lot I, II and III work for Task 1 could be bid as prime by IT companies due to system assessment capability.

Answer:  Correct. Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, bids may be placed by IT companies serving as the prime contractor. 

200.  Does an 8(a) firm have to be an IPA firm?

Answer:   In performing CFO audits, a firm has to be an IPA.

201.  Who will give the "opinions" on the DoD Financial Statements (CPA/IPA firms or DODIG)?

Answer:  The OIG DoD will be rendering the opinion on the financial statements thus making the OIG DoD the lead auditor.  The OIG DoD will be taking responsibility of the opinion.

202.  Yellow Book standards require a peer review.  Please state your understanding of how non-IPA firms will meet that requirement. 

Answer:  In accordance with SOW paragraph 2.6 “Independence/Quality Control Assurance” Non-CPA firms that do not have an internal inspection report or inspection report prepared by the Public/Company Accounting Oversight Board will need to provide policies and procedures in the following functional areas;

· Independence, integrity and objectivity

· Personnel management (including recruiting and hiring, advancement, professional development and training and assigning personnel to work)

· Audit and assessment performance (including supervision and consultation)

· Acceptance and continuance of assignments

· Monitoring programs

· How quality controls have been implemented or will be implemented
203.  Is there difference under proposed Task 1 between the SAS 70/88 (paragraph 3.1.1) review and Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems?  Or, are they for all practical purposes 1 in the same and will issued under the same task order? 

Answer: Many of the procedures and audit steps required to conduct a SAS 70/88 review and the assessments are the same.  The individual task orders will identify if a SAS 70/88 review should be conducted as part of the assessment.  The Government does anticipate issuing task order, which do not require a SAS 70/88 review.  

204.  The answer provided to the Q&A has been fairly explicit that DoD does not require a CPA/IPA to bid, nor will they limit the award of task 1 to a CPA/IPA firm.  Yet, Section 2.0 (especially paragraph 2.6) refer to corporate qualification that are unique to a CPA/IPA .  Does DoD expect: 

(a)  non-CPA/IPA firms to have these CPA/IPA firm qualifications/processes?

(b)  Are these qualification/certification of processes going to be required to be submitted as part of the proposal?

(c)  Used as evaluation factors (the next effect being that no CPA/IPA firms could not effectively compete, as a prime in Task 1)?

Answer: The Government does not expect a non-CPA firm to have the same certification process as a CPA/IPA firm.  We are revising Section 2.6 to state that non-CPA firms will need to provide policies and procedures in the following functional areas;

 

· Independence, integrity and objectivity

· Personnel management (including recruiting and hiring, advancement, professional development and training and assigning personnel to work)

· Audit or assessment performance (including supervision and consultation)

· Acceptance and continuance of assignments

· Monitoring programs

· How quality controls have been implemented or will be implemented

This information will be provided and assessed at the task order level.
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